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1. SASSA'S GENERAL INFORMATION

The South African Social Security Agency (SASSA)

Physical address of Head Office

Head Office Address:
SASSA House
501 Prodinsa Building
Cnr Steve Biko and Pretorius Streets
Pretoria

Postal Address of Head Office
Private Bag X55662
Arcadia
Pretoria
0083

Contact telephone numbers 

Switch Board: 012 400 2000 
Website address: www.sassa.gov.za 

External Auditors: Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) 

Bankers: South African Reserve Bank and First National Bank (FNB) 

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 



• 

• 

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA 

AFS 

COG 

CEO 

CFO 

CIO 

CPS 

CSG 

CSIR 

CVM 

DG 

EPWP 

EXCO 

FCG 

FMB 

GIA 

GRAP 

HCM 

ICROP 

ICT 

IRM 

MANCO 

MPSS 

MTEF 

NPS 

OAG 

PFMA 

PSC 

REM 

SASSA 

SCM 

SIU 

SOCPEN 

SRO 

SSA 

TR 

WVG 

Auditor General of South Africa 

Annual Financial Statements 

Care Dependency Grant 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Chief Information Officer 

Cash Payment Services 

Child Support Grant 

Council for Scientific and Industrial Research 

Cardholder Verification Method 

Disability Grant 

Expanded Public Works Programme 

Executive Committee 

Foster Child Grant 

Financial Misconduct Board 

Grant-in-Aid 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

Human Capital Management 

Integrated Community Registration Outreach Programme 

Information and Communication Technology 

The Internal Reconsideration Mechanism 

Management Committee 

Minimum Physical Security Standards 

Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

National Payment System 

Old Age Grant 

Public Finance Management Act 

Public Service Commission 

Regional Executive Manager 

South African Social Security Agency 

Supply Chain Management 

Special Investigation Unit 

Social Pensions System 

Social Relief of Distress 

State Security Agency 

Treasury Regulations 

War Veteran Grant 
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3. FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER

It is almost a decade now that our democratic Government 

set out ambitious and progressive plans for the reform of 
the social security system in South Africa. The launch of 

the South African Social Security Agency (SASSA) in 

2006, heralded a new beginning aimed at ensuring that the 

payment of social grants is not purely executed as an 

administrative process, but as way of upholding the right to 

access social security as enshrined in the Constitution of 

our country. 

As an entity of Government, one of SASSA's primary 

responsibility is to make the right to social security, the 

right to dignity and respect, a living reality for the poor and 
vulnerable members of our society. 

Twenty one years into our democracy, we take great pride 

in the contribution the Agency has made and continue to 

make in building a new society, uniting all of our people, 

expanding opportunities that the new freedom brought to 
our people, and most importantly, in reducing poverty and 

improving the quality of life of millions of our people. To 

date, the South African social assistance programme 

continues to have positive impact on the South African economy and is recognised globally as one of 

the most effective anti-poverty measures. 

In a report entitled "The State of Social Safety Nets 2014", the World Bank ranks the Child Support 

Grant amongst the top five programmes across the world and also as the largest social safety net on 

the African continent. South Africa performed very well when compared with other middle-income 

countries. 

The successful implementation of the new payment solution and the massive re-registration drive in 

2012, opened new vistas for SASSA in the international front. More than ever before, the Agency's 

achievements have generated a lot of international recognition in both developed and developing 

world. Our achievements have inspired other developing countries such as Thailand, which has 

introduced an unconditional grant that is modelled on the Child Support Grant. Despite these 

impressive achievements, much more still need to be done to address the triple challenges of poverty, 

unemployment and inequality as envisioned in the National Development Plan. 

In carrying out the mandate of this Agency, one of the most urgent and important task is to address 

child poverty and to improve outcomes for children by ensuring that all eligible children are assisted to 

access social assistance at an early age. With this in mind, one of our priorities for the year under 

review was to improve the low uptake of the Child Support Grant, with particular focus on children 
between 0-1 years. As at the end of the financial year, more than 139,000 children in this age cohort 

were registered as grant beneficiaries, many of them for the first time since birth. 

In line with our strategic objective to strengthen, modernise and to improve the integrity of our social 

security system, I appointed a Ministerial Advisory Committee to advice on the future payment model 

for social assistance benefits in South Africa. The Committee finalised its work and presented their 

report in December 2014, which amongst others, recommended the institutionalisation of the payment 

system within SASSA. 

This will require that we invest in information and communication technology and skilled personnel 

that will support an end-to-end process. Consistent with Government's broader agenda of promoting 
financial inclusion, the Committee further recommended that social grants be leveraged to support 

local economic development initiatives. 
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We have proactively started to redistribute some of the consumption investments by social grants 
beneficiaries from big business to small enterprises at community level. To this end, we will use the 
payment infrastructure to support local merchants as part of our contribution to the radical socio
economic transformation agenda. We will establish various work-streams to facilitate the 
implementation of these and other valuable recommendations that the Committee has made in the 
report. 

I am pleased that our flagship service delivery initiatives such as Project Mikondzo and the Integrated 
Community Registration Outreach Programme are finally taking root across the sector. To date, we 
have visited more 714 poor wards across the country and we will visit more in the coming months to 
respond to the immediate needs of our people. As one of Government's frontline public entities, 
SASSA personnel play a very important role in the delivery of services. For this reason, we are 
committed to a service delivery culture that puts every official within the Agency, irrespective of rank, 
to work for our people. 

The achievements and the initiatives I have alluded to represent an evolution in our endeavour to 
build a comprehensive, responsive and sustainable social protection system in South Africa. In his 
State of the Nation Address in February this year, President Jacob Zuma stated that we are entering 
the second phase of the transition, which require decisive action on the part of Government and key 
sectors of our society to improve the quality of life of all South Africans and to consolidate our 
democratic gains. Similarly, SASSA is entering a new period of important and hopeful change for that 
will help us to build on our successes of the past years and propel this Agency to be a great and good 
organisation that it can be. 

' 

�/V\IV\f\J\M 
MS BO DLAMINI, MP 

MINISTER OF SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

DATE: 10 JULY 2015 
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4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S OVERVIEW

This report concludes our commitment in terms of 
SASSA'S Annual Performance Plan 2014/15 and our 
Strategic Plan 2014/2019. The report provides a 
detailed assessment of the Agency's performance in 
terms of service delivery outcomes and outputs, as 
well as Agency's objectives as set out in the plans. 
Following our renewed commitment in the previous 
financial year, we experienced some successes and 
some challenges in 2014/15. Some of the successes 
include the following: 
As at the end of 2014/15 some 16 642 643 individuals 
in the most vulnerable categories in receipt of social 
grants constituted approximately 30.8% of the 
population, and social relief of distress was awarded 
to an additional 353 678 households at a combined 
budget of R121billion. 
There was an increase in the take-up rate of social 
grants from -1.08% in the 2013/14 to 4.46% in the 

2014/15 financial year. This is largely due to the inclusion of the excluded children improving the 
effectiveness of targeting and administration to almost 90% of the poorest and most vulnerable 
people in South Africa. 
As part of SASSA's service excellence plan, officials who are in the front office were trained in sign 
language and first-aid to enable them to interact with the hearing impaired individuals and render 
emergency medical assistance. This training is anticipated to be rolled out to all SASSA staff in the 
next financial year. SASSA continued to reach out to deeply impoverished communities via the 
Integrated Community Registration Outreach Programme (ICROP), door-to-door surveys and 
Mikondzo. During this period, 714 of the poorest wards were visited and services provided. 
During the financial year 2014/15, some 52 local offices and 144 pay points were improved in line with 
SASSA's national guidelines for improved services. Special attention was paid to ensure that offices 
and service points were disability-friendly and had the appropriate ramps and space for wheelchairs. 
SASSA sharpened its instruments with a view to provide the best services to our beneficiaries. As 
promised in this implementation cycle, we remained committed to the Government's resolve to fast
track transformation in the workplace and to address the new challenges facing us. Measures were 
put in place to reduce overcrowding at local offices such as queue management and the introduction 
of a national call centre at head office. We have seen an improvement in the processing of new 
applications within 21 working days from 91% in 2013/14 to 99.6% in 2014/15. 
We commit to continue to interact with the citizenry by enhancing access to information and quality 
services, aimed at improving the lives of all our citizens. The centre of our transformation agenda is 
ensuring that real customer insight is the driver of service design and delivery; reducing duplication 
and non-value adding customer contact; optimising the capability of management to make use of 
technology to enable channels for communication and use government ICT infrastructure 
appropriately. 
It is with pride that the Agency reports significant improvements in the financial management ability of 
the organisation. Our performance displays a continuous improvement year-on-year with the Agency 
having received four favourable unqualified audit reports in a row since 2011/12. 
In conclusion, I wish to thank the Minister and Deputy Minister of Social Development for their 
leadership and support during the year. I also wish to thank management and staff for their hard work 
and dedication that they displayed at all times. 

�� 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE: 17 JULY 2015 
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY

FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial 
statements audited by the Auditor General. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board applicable to the public entity. 

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for 
the judgements made in this information. 

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance 
information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 
resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 
March 2015. 

Yours faithfully 

��� 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

DATE: 17 JULY 2015 
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1. Vision 

A leader in the delivery of social security services. 

6.2. Mission 

To administer social security services to eligible children, older persons and people with disabilities. 

6.3. Values 

SASSA, as a Section 3A public entity, subscribes to those values that promote democracy, redress, 

social cohesion and a culture of respect for human rights underpinned by the following values: 

Transparency SASSA will share with stakeholders information about how it conducts its 

business. 

Equity SASSA is committed to the fair and impartial treatment of all its stakeholders 

including the customer. 

Integrity SASSA is committed to being honest, fair and accountable in dealing with its 

operations, finances and other businesses. 

Confidentiality SASSA will ensure that all stakeholder information will be protected and be 

made accessible only to those authorised to access it. 

Customer Centric SASSA will take the needs of its customers into consideration by developing 

user-friendly and quality products and services. 

6.4. SASSA Priorities 

SASSA's key priorities for 2014/15 are the following: 

• Reducing income poverty by providing social assistance to eligible individuals.

• Improving service delivery.

• Improving internal efficiency.

• Institutionalising social grants payment system within SASSA.

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 





7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

7.1 Constitutional Mandate

SASSA derives its mandate from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 
of 1996). Section 27(1) (c) of the Constitution states that "everyone has the right to social security, 
including if they are unable to support themselves and their dependents, appropriate social 
assistance." 

7.2 Legislative Mandates 

The following laws constitute the legal framework for the operations of the South African Social 
Security Agency: 

Social Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No. 13 of 2004) as amended 

The Social Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No. 13 of 2004) as amended provides for the rendering of social 
assistance to eligible persons; for mechanisms for the rendering of such assistance; and to provide 
for matters connected therewith. 

South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 (Act No. 9 of 2004) 

The South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 (Act No. 9 of 2004) provides for the 

establishment of the South African Social Security Agency (SASSA) with the objective of ensuring 
effective and efficient administration, management and payment of social assistance, to provide for 
the prospective administration and payment of social security, including the provision of services 
related thereto, and to provide for matters connected therewith. 

7.3 Policy Mandates 

White Paper on Social Development 

The objectives for social security in South Africa are reflected in the Government's 1997 White Paper 
on Social Development, which states that "a social security system is essential for healthy economic 
development, particularly in a rapidly changing economy, and will contribute actively to the 
development process. It is important for immediate alleviation of poverty and is a mechanism for 
active redistribution". 

National Development Plan 2030 

According to the National Development Plan 2030, South Africa needs to pay careful attention to the 
design of policies between now and 2030, to ensure that vulnerable groups and citizens are protected 
from the worst effects of poverty. These social protection measures proposed seek to support those 

most in need, including children, people with disabilities and the elderly and to promote active 
participation in the economy and society for those who are unemployed and under-employed due to 
labour market activation measures, employment services, income support programmes and other 
services to sustain and improve the quality of life. 

The plan acknowledges that the country has built an advanced and comprehensive social protection 
system, with a wide reach and coverage, but the system is still fragmented, plagued by administrative 
bottle-necks and the implementation inefficiencies. As a result, the various elements of the social 
protection system are not operating seamlessly. The priority should be improving efficiency in the 
delivery of services, addressing exclusions by identifying and reaching those who are entitled to the 
existing benefits of social protection and reducing the administrative delays that prevent people 
accessing benefits. 
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

THE SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL 

SECURITY AGENCY 

BRANCH: 

11 
BRANCH: 

INTERNAL AUDIT & CORPORATE 

RISK MANAGEMENT I SERVICES 

OFFICE OF TME CEO 

DEPARTMENT: INTER· 

GOVERNMENTAL & 
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DEPARTMENT: SECURITY 

MANAGEMENT 
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l
FINANCE 
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TECHNOLOGY (ICT) 

11 

DEPARTMENT:FRAUD 

MANAGEMENT AND 

COMPLIANCE 

DEPARTMENT: ENTERPRISE 

PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT 

OFFICE (EPMO) 

REGIONAL OFFICES X 9 
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I I 

BRANCH: 

GRANTS GRANTS BENEFIT 

ADMINISTRATION TRANSFERS 
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STRATEGY& 
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1. AUDITOR'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information 

to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the 

performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material 
findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and 

regulatory requirements section of the auditor's report. 

Refer to page 76 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information. 

· · · · · · · · · · · · ·
· · · · · · · · · · · ·
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2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1. Service Delivery Environment 

The primary objective of the South African Social Security Agency (SASSA) is to administer the social 

assistance programme. Social assistance is a rights-based safety net, awarded in terms of the Social 

Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No. 13 of 2004) and is South Africa's most effective anti-poverty initiative. 

Through this programme, SASSA provides regular and predictable financial support to targeted poor 

and vulnerable South Africans, including permanent residents and refugees. The main beneficiaries 

of the social assistance programme are children, older persons, people with disabilities, and social 
relief of distress is also provided to destitute households and individuals. These categories of people 

were identified globally and in the National Development Plan (2030), as the most vulnerable 

categories that must be included in the provision of social protection floors. As at the end of 2014/15, 

some 16 642 643 individuals were in receipt of social grants constituting approximately 30.8% of the 

population, and social relief of distress was awarded to approximately 353 678 households with a 

combined budget of approximately R121 billion. 

There was an increase in the take-up rate of social grants from -1.08% in the 2013/14 to 4.46% in the 
2014/15 financial year. This is largely owing to the extensive marketing and communication targeting 

the excluded, the poorest and most vulnerable people in South Africa. Studies undertaken by SASSA 

and UNICEF identified that approximately 2,3m children or 20% of the most vulnerable children were 

excluded from access to child grants particularly children in the age categories O - 1 and over 12 

years. Rigorous measures were implemented to identify these children and include them in the 

programme. In 2014/15, the take-up of social grants amongst children aged 0-1 increased by 30%. 

Approximately 138 632 children aged O - 1 were registered as grant beneficiaries, bringing in total the 

total number of children's grants for this age category to 597 459. 

Table 1 below depicts the uptake rates for the different grant types in the last 9 years. Between April 
2006 and March 2015, the total number of social grants increased from 12 015 059 to 16 642 643, 

and the growth of social grants over this period was 38.5%. This increase was mainly driven by the 

Child Support Grant, Old Age Grant and Grant in Aid, which showed significant upward trends over 

the years due to policy changes, whilst the War Veteran Grant and Disability Grant decreased 

steadily. When tracking the annual percentage growth, the picture is one of a declining percentage 

uptake between 2010/11 and 2013/14 financial years, largely due to the anti-fraud and corruption 

measures being implemented. There was a national growth of 4.46% (710 170) social grants in 

2014/15. This growth was as a result of an increase in the take-up rate of Grant-In-Aid (36.15%), 

followed by the Child Support Grant (5.19%), Care Dependency Grant (5.09%) and Old Age Grant 

(3.94%). The War Veterans, Foster Child and Disability Grants decreased by (24.01%), (2.40%) and 

(0.69%) respectively. Table 2 below depicts the social grants expenditure since 2006/07. 
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Table 1: Number of Social Grants by Grant Type 
Grant Type 2006/07 2007/08 

Old Age 2 195 018 2 229 550 
War Veteran 2 340 1 924 
Disability 1 422 808 1 408 456 
Grant in Aid 31 918 37 343 
Care 98 631 102 292 
Dependency 
Foster Child 400 503 454 199 

Child Support 7 863 841 8 189 975 

Total 12 015 059 12 423 739 

Annual Growth 3.40% 

Source: SOCPEN System 

2: Social G G 

Grant Type 2006/07 2007/08 

Old Aoe 21 222 OOO 22 803 047 

War Veteran 25 OOO 21 845 

Disability 14 261 OOO 15 281 403 

Foster Child 2 851 OOO 3 414 315 

Care 1 006 OOO 1 132 102 
Dependency 

Child Support 17 559 OOO 19 625 983 

Grant in Aid 67 OOO 87 OOO 

SRO 41 OOO 106 244 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

2 390 543 2 546 657 2 678 554 2 750 857 
1 500 1 216 958 753 

1 286 883 1 264 477 1 200 898 1 198 131 
46 069 53 237 58 413 66 493 

107 065 110 731 112 185 114 993 

474 759 510 760 512 874 536 747 

8 765 354 9 570 287 10 371 950 10 927 731 

13 072 173 14 057 365 14 935 832 15 595 705 

5.22% 7.50% 6.20% 4.42% 

-

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

25 933 971 29 826 420 33 750 600 37 129 812 
19 692 16 644 13 976 11 848 

16 473 425 16 566 681 16 840 182 17 375 021 

3 934 756 4 434 346 4 616 442 5 010 915 

1 292 470 1 434 143 1 586 452 1 736 431 

22 348 556 26 669 761 30 341 465 34 319 636 

90 OOO 146 295 170 052 204 026 

623 012 165 458 173 737 185 298 

Total R57 032 OOO R62 471 939 R70 715 885 R79 259 748 R87 492 906 R95 972 987 

, s�§§.'3.
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2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

2 873 197 2 969 933 3 086 851 
587 429 326 

1 164 192 1 120 419 1 112 663 
73 719 83 059 113 087 

120 268 120 632 126 777 

532 159 512 055 499 774 

11 341 988 11 125 946 11 703 165 

16 106 110 15 932 473 16 642 643 

3.27% -1.08% 4.46% 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

40 475 021 44 064 239 49 039 940 
9 543 7 657 6 157 

17 636 570 17 768 631 18 741 885 

5 335 049 5 332 093 5 413 209 

1 877 412 1 993 084 2 211 583 

38 087 990 39 623 748 43 718 425 

237 974 274 092 371 121 

239 289 533 047 455 718 

R103 898 845 R109 596 591 R119 958 041 
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Table 3: Numb f Social Grants by Grant T dR t 31 March 2015 

Region OAG WVG DG GIA CDG FCG CSG Total 

EC 528 291 47 182 479 16 391 19 165 115 849 1 856 250 2 718 472 

FS 182 314 5 75 526 2 095 6 385 37 985 656 464 960 774 

GP 482 168 89 106 015 2 989 16 170 53 411 1 657 061 2 317 903 

KZN 631 713 38 284 574 39 333 36 471 118 505 2 775 481 3 886 115 

LP 430 368 21 93 428 21 228 13 266 57 694 1 699 494 2 315 499 

MP 226 625 14 78 487 5 154 9 572 34 260 1 034 942 1 389 054 

NW 233 547 11 85 517 7 217 8 940 37 984 797 289 1 170 505 

NC 79 080 9 50 787 6 587 4 787 14 513 290 497 446 260 

we 292 745 92 155 850 12 093 12 021 29 573 935 687 1 438 061 

Total 3 086 851 326 1 112 663 113 087 126 777 499 774 11 703 165 16 642 643 

% total 18.55% 0.00% 6.69% 0.68% 0.76% 3.00% 70.32% 100% 

Source: SOCPEN System 
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% of total 

16.30% 

5.80% 

13.90% 

23.40% 

13.90% 

8.30% 

7.00% 

2.70% 

8.60% 

100% 



Table 3 indicates that KwaZulu-Natal has received the highest number of social grants (3 886 115), 
followed by the Eastern Cape (2 718 472), Gauteng (2 317 903), and Limpopo (2 315 499). The 
Northern Cape received the lowest number of social grants totalling 446 260. The Child Support 
Grant accounts for the largest number of social grants, totalling 11 703 165, followed by Old Age 
Grant (3 086 851) and Disability Grant (1 112 663). The War Veteran Grant received the lowest at 
326. 

SASSA in its effort to actualise its strategic objective of an institutionalised grant payment system, 
secured the services of the Council for Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR) to investigate and 
make recommendations on possible technical solutions for Biometric and Payment Systems for grant 
distributions. 

The research on Biometric and Payment Systems also entail the need to address technical solutions 
on specifications for SASSA. The Biometric Enrolment and Identification System, will in turn consist of 
proof of life verification solution and an improved grant payment system for SASSA beneficiaries. 

The effectiveness of the proof of life verification solution is dependent on compatibility with payment 
Cardholder Verification Method (CVM) solutions in the National Payment System (NPS) and as such 
necessitates the development of Biometric Standard for CVM in the NPS infrastructural environment. 

2.2. Organisational Environment 

SASSA continuously strives to improve its service delivery to its beneficiaries and therefore embarked 
on a number of projects to realise its priorities in the current financial year. These priorities included 
the following: 

Excellent Customer Care 

We have seen an improvement in the processing of new applications. In 2014/15, a total of 1 379 253 
were received and 99.6% of these applications were processed within 21 days. This is an 
improvement from the previous financial year where 91 % were processed within the stipulated turn
around times. 

The Internal Reconsideration Mechanism (IRM) affords beneficiaries an opportunity to apply for 
reconsideration of an adverse decision by SASSA. IRM is functioning efficiently and 73% of 
applications received were resolved within 90 days. 

Measures have been put in place to reduce overcrowding at local offices and service points such as 
queue management and introduction of a national call centre at head office. The in house call centre 
is now fully operational and functions within maximum turnaround time to resolve inquiries and 
complaints within 5 working days. 

As part of SASSA's service excellence plan, officials who are in the frontline for service delivery were 
trained in sign language and first aid to enable them to interact with the hearing impaired, and being 
able to provide emergency medical assistance. This training is anticipated to be rolled out to all 
SASSA staff members in the next financial year. 

SASSA continued to reach out to deeply impoverished communities via the Integrated Community 
Registration Outreach Programme (ICROP), door to door surveys and Mikondzo. During this period, 
714 outreach programmes inclusive of Mikondzo were conducted and services provided. 

Infrastructure Improvements 

Social Assistance is a Constitutional Right that must be provided with dignity. This required SASSA to 
ensure that its clients and beneficiaries are served in humane conditions. To this end, a total of 52 
local offices and 144 pay points were improved in line with SASSA's national guidelines for improved 
services. 
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Special attention was paid to ensure that offices and service points are disability-friendly and that 
buildings have the appropriate ramps and space for wheelchairs. Furthermore, SASSA continued to 
maintain its office accommodation to ensure the safety and security of its employees and 
beneficiaries. This includes the maintenance, cleaning and provision of security to 9 regional offices, 
44 district offices and 407 local offices countrywide. However, SASSA continued to experience 
challenges with regard to the availability of buildings, especially to house its paypoints. A process to 
engage different stakeholders, including Traditional Leaders, to make infrastructure available for use 
by SASSA, commenced during the reporting period. 

Automation 

Automation of all services is a priority for SASSA, hence the emphasis on the automated business 
process. SASSA developed a strategic Architecture and ICT road map in order to provide an 
integrated secure end-to-end solution; enable automation of business services; and provide optimal 
on-going support to the organisation. This road map will guide the implementation of the automation 
of programme over the next five years. 

The SOCPEN system was continuously enhanced to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the 
administration of social assistance. In addition, a Business Intelligence solution was procured. This 
solution will enhance the management of information and reporting within SASSA. 

During the period under review SASSA has initiated the process for the automation of its records 
management. This will result in greater efficiency within SASSA and significant costs savings once 
completed. Most local offices are equipped with computers, printers and network connectivity to 
speed up processing of social grants. The specifications and Terms of Reference for SASSA's 
enterprise scanning solution were developed as the first step of digitising beneficiary records. 

Human Resource Management 

SASSA has a staff establishment of 18 341, which was developed as part of the blue print for its 
establishment as a Public Entity. The purpose for the establishment of SASSA was to take overall 
responsibflity for the administration, management and payment of social grants. However, the actual 
payment of social grants continued to be outsourced to third parties, as SASSA was not ready to 
perform this function in-house. The continued outsourced payment service meant that SASSA only 
performed part of its responsibility. The posts relating to the outsourced service can therefore not be 
filled, hence the high vacancy rate. 

A total of 10 742 posts were filled as at the end of the period under review. The number of employees 
increased from 8 700 in the previous financial year to 10 7 42 by end of financial year. This number 
includes Expanded Public Works Programme workers (EPWPs) and interns. The EPWPs and interns 
were appointed in line with Government's commitment to create learnership opportunities for the 
unemployed. 

SASSA further experienced the following changes affecting key positions during the period under 
review: 

• The Regional Executive Manager of the Northern Cape region retired in March 2015, which
necessitated an acting arrangement. The recruitment process to fill the post was in progress at
the end of the period under review.

• The Regional Executive Manager of Limpopo was transferred to the Gauteng region in April
2014. This was necessary to ensure the stability of the Gauteng region as it is one of SASSA's
biggest regions. The recruitment process to replace the transferred REM is underway.

• The Chief Information Officer (CIO) post has been vacant since the beginning of the financial
year. The post was advertised and interviews held, but no suitable candidate could be
identified. SASSA is in the process of head-hunting to identify suitably qualified candidates.

• The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of SASSA was seconded to the Department of Social
Development and subsequently appointed to its ranks during the period under review. SASSA
is in the process of filling the CFO post.
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• Both the Limpopo and Northern Cape regions have acting REMs.

Various training interventions were implemented to improve the leadership and technical capabilities 
of employees. The interventions ranged from supervisory training to leadership development. The 
nature of the business of SASSA is a direct daily interface with members of the public. This 
necessitated SASSA to invest in the roll out of focused training on customer care to enable its front
line employees to better enhance engagement with clients. A total of R23 676 214 was spent on 
training interventions. 

Litigation Management 

The nature of the business of SASSA exposes it to the risk of litigation, due to, in some instances, the 

administrative decisions taken or action by its employees. These include grant-related litigation, 

labour disputes, contractual claims, motor vehicle accidents and procurement-related matters 

(contingent and non-contingent matters). There has been an increase in litigation cases against 

SASSA (instituted against SASSA) from 62 matters in the financial year 2013/2014 to 143 in the 

2014/2015 financial year. The total amount of litigation costs (liability) for the financial year 2014/2015 

decreased from R 7 685 584.25 in 2013/2014 to R 4 770 023.42 in the 2014/15 financial year. 

Table 4 below depicts the number of litigation cases instituted against SASSA; the legal costs paid by 
SASSA, as well as the difference between the 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 financial years. 

Table 4: Total number of litigation cases and costs instituted against SASSA - per annum 

OFFICE 2013/2014 2014/2015 Total Difference 
Number RValue Number RValue Number RValue 

SASSA: HO 1 3 398 096.09 10 1 356 480.13 9 -2 041 615.96

Eastern Cape 43 2 485 513.42 57 2 171 138.24 14 -314 375.18

Free State 1 18 582.39 0 31 208.15 -1 12 625.76 

Gauteno 1 22 7 439.41 1 273 536.79 0 46 097.38 

KwaZulu-Natal 12 1 381 155.06 72 224 834.76 60 -1 156320.3

Limpopo 1 22 430.00 0 0.00 -1 -22 430.00

Mpumalanoa 0 0.00 2 0.00 2 0.00 

Northern Cape 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 

North West 2 20 517.57 0 397 451.11 -2 376 933.54 

Western Cape 1 131 850.31 1 315 374.24 0 183 523.93 

Total 6 2 7 685 584 . 25 143 4 770023.4 2 8 1 -2 915560.83

NB: The litigation costs reflected in the table above do not necessarily reflect the expenditure for the 
period under review, but also include the costs carried over from previous financial years. 

Fraud Management 

SASSA has linked its Fraud Prevention Strategy to Risk Management. During 2014/15, Fraud Risk 
Assessments were conducted at Head Office. The focal areas were Grant Administration, Information 
and Communication Technology and Supply Chain Management. The Fraud Risk Assessments was 
also conducted in all nine SASSA regions, to the level of five high risk offices per region; i.e. districts 
and local offices, which have been identified via previous investigations as fraud hotspots. 

During the 2014/15 financial year, a total of 1 328 cases were received, of which 950 were 
investigated and finalised, amounting to R29 138 757. A total of 266 officials were suspended and 53 
dismissed as at 31 March 2015. Eleven cases were referred to Law Enforcement Agencies and five 
officials were convicted. 
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A total of 94 money-lending cases were reported, implicating 64 suspects who were in possession of 

350 SASSA cards and R586 486 in cash. Sixteen private persons in a Kombi including three CPS 
officials with 280 SASSA cards were apprehended. Also recovered were a speed-point machine and 

a laptop (linked to 2 separate robbery incidents at the SASSA offices in KZN). Thirteen (13) private 

persons turned state witness. Two (2) CPS officials were sentenced to 15 years each, 1 tout fined R8 

OOO (R2 OOO paid and R6 OOO suspended for 5 years), while 1 CPS official is still on trial. 

Three SASSA officials were arrested and dismissed and their case is still under investigation for 

having created 55 ghost beneficiaries, amounting to R752 460.00. One official and one former official 

was arrested on the suspicion of having created ghost beneficiaries who were paid grants worth R2 

735 793.00. The former official pleaded guilty and is currently serving a seven-year sentence for fraud 

and corruption. Currently there is a disciplinary hearing underway against five officials, including the 

supervisor of the office. 

2.3. Key policy developments and legislative changes 

There was only a minor legislative change regarding social assistance during the 2014/15 financial year, 

namely the change of the formula for the means test for grants for older persons, war veterans and people 

with disabilities. This resulted in an increase in the means test thresholds, allowing citizens with a slightly 

higher personal income still to qualify for social grants. The means test thresholds was raised from R50 340 

per annum for single applicants to R61 800 per annum, while the threshold for married applicants was 

raised from R100 680 per annum to R123 600 per annum. 

2.4. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals 

Strategic outcome oriented goal 

Goal statement 

Expand access to social assistance and create a 

platform for future payment of social security benefits. 

To render social assistance to eligible beneficiaries 

SOCIAL GRANTS FRAUD 

AND CORRUPTION 
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3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

3.1. Programme 1: Administration 

Purpose 

To provide leadership, management and support services to SASSA. 

Description 

This programme aims to ensure effective leadership and administrative support services within 

SASSA. 

The programme consists of the following sub-programmes: 

• The Executive Management sub-programme comprises the Office of the CEO and related
support services including Internal Audit, Fraud and Compliance Management, Communication

and Legal Services.

• The Corporate Services sub-programme is responsible for the provision of corporate support

services and comprises Human Capital Management, Facilities Management, Security Services

and Auxiliary Support Services. In addition, the sub-programme is responsible for office

accommodation, which ensures the provision and maintenance of suitable office

accommodation, lease administration and cleaning services.

• Finance sub-programme: prepares financial plans and monitors the national and regional

budgets and expenditure, and manages SASSA's accounting and procurement system.

• Information and Communication Technology: ensures the development of ICT systems to

support key business processes and effective utilisation of ICT solutions.

• Strategy and Business Development is responsible for effective planning, it improves
operational efficiency and oversees the implementation of policies via monitoring and

evaluation, as well as the development of new products.

sassa 
SOUTll AFRICA SOCIAl SECURITY AGE CV 
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Table 5: Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements: Sub-programme 1.1 Executive Management 

Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.1: Executive Management 

Strategic objective: To promote good governance in the management of the Agency 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target 2014115 Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on deviations 
Indicator 2013/14 2014115 planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

1. Number of internal 48 internal audit 40 internal audit reviews 36 internal audit reviews -4 Staff members were moved from 
audit reviews reviews conducted. conducted on high-risk conducted on high-risk their planned projects to assist in 
conducted on high- areas. areas. others, hence the target of 40 
risk areas. internal audit reviews could not be 

achieved. 

Focus was on a due diligence 
exercise on SIU debtors. 

2. Number of fraud, Fraud case 36 fraud, theft and 42 fraud, theft and 6 The overachievement was due to 
theft and corruption management system corruption awareness corruption awareness the support of the annual ICROP 
awareness was successfully programmes conducted. programmes conducted. plan with relevant stakeholders. 
programmes implemented. The 
conducted. system is updated on a 

daily basis and 
challenges are 
addressed and 
managed as they 
occur. 

3. Percentage of Identified fraud cases - 60% of reported fraud, 72% of reported fraud, 19.2% The deviation is ascribed to the 
reported fraud, theft 3,571. The total and corruption cases and corruption cases 

(153) 
fact that the Fraud Management 

and corruption number of fraud cases investigated. investigated. and Compliance Department, 
cases investigated. investigated is - 3,227. during the year under review, 

This represents 90% of 
finalised an additional 1 374 cases 

the identified fraud Out of 1 328 reported in respect of the backlog cases 

cases. fraud and corruption carried over from the previous 

cases received, 950 were financial years. 

investigated. 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.1: Executive Management 

Strategic objective: To promote good governance in the management of the Agency 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target 2014/15 Actual Achievement 
Indicator 2013/14 2014115 

4. Litigation reduction 62 litigation cases Litigation reduction Litigation reduction 
measures finalised. measures developed and measures were 
developed and implemented. developed and 
implemented. implemented. The focus 

was on identifying and 
assessing causes of 
litigation; developing 
training schedules and 
organising and/or 
arranging workshops 
and/or training (i.e. 
amendment to the labour 
relations legislation, 
awareness on PAIA, 
PAJA and COA). The 
number of litigation cases 
handled was 143 and the 
expenditure on litigation 
in the financial year was 
R4 770 023.42. 

5. Percentage of 100% of letters of 100% of letters of 100% (999 of 999) letters 
letters of demand demand responded to demand responded to of demand (received) 
responded to upon upon agreed time upon agreed time responded to upon 
agreed time frames. frames. frames. agreed time frames. 

6. Percentage of 100% of contracts 100% of contracts vetted 100% (914 of914) 
contracts vetted were vetted within 10 within 10 days. Contracts were vetted 
within 10 days. days. within 10 days. 

Deviation from Comment on deviations 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
2014115 

None None 

None None 

None None 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.1: Executive Management 

Strategic objective: To promote good governance in the management of the Agency 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target 2014/15 Actual Achievement 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 

7. Percentage of 100% of Agency 100% of Agency There were no Agency 
Agency instituted instituted matters instituted matters instituted matters during 
matters successfully successfully concluded. successfully concluded. this financial year. 
concluded. 

8. Number of 181 events conducted. 20 beneficiary education 393 beneficiary education 
beneficiary programmes conducted. programmes conducted. 
education 
programmes 
conducted. 

9. Number of public 285 stakeholder 20 public awareness 2 044 public awareness 
awareness engagements held. programmes conducted. programmes conducted. 
programmes 
conducted. 

Deviation from Comment on deviations 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

None 

373 SASSA had to intensify the 
education in order to promote the 
CSG means test threshold and 
COG. 

2 024 SASSA had to intensify the 
awareness programmes due to 
reported complaints relating to 
unauthorised debit orders. 

In addition there was a mandatory 
requirement to comply with 
payment legislation, which 
necessitated pin migration for 
some categories of beneficiaries. 
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Table 6: Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned, targets and actual achievements: Sub-programme 1.2: Information and 
Communication Technology 

Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-Droaramme 1.2: Information and Communication Technoloav (ICT) 

Strateaic obiective: Effective ICT operations 

No. Performance Indicator Actual Planned Target 2014115 Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on 
Achievement 2014115 planned target to deviations 
2013/14 Actual 

Achievement for 
2014/15 

1. Phased-in implementation Biometric access to Phased-in implementation of The Biometrics bid Phased-in The bid was 
of biometric authentication grant system not biometric authentication system was cancelled There implementation of advertised and it is 
system piloted (SOCPEN- implemented. (SOCPEN - users). after the Terms of biometric still under evaluation. 
users). Reference were authentication 

reviewed and the bid system (SOCPEN -
was re-advertised. users) could not be 
The evaluation achieved. 
process commenced 
but was not finalised. 

2. Develop and implement Report on co- Phase-one of solution for The Terms of Phase-one of the Evaluation of Phase 
solution for scanning and sourcing model for digitised document storage Reference for the solution for digitised one of the solution 
storage of documents. MIS registries system developed and digitised document document storage for digitised 

completed. implemented. storage system were system not document storage 
finalised. The bid was developed. system will 

Architecture on advertised and the commence in April 
Electronic Content evaluation of the bids 2015. There was a 
Management is in progress. delay in the 
completed. finalisation of the 

Terms of Reference 
due to consultation 
with various 
stakeholders taking 
longer than 
anticipated. 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.2: Information and Communication Technology (ICT) 

Strateaic obiective: Effective ICT operations 

No. Performance Indicator Actual Planned Target 2014/15 Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on 
Achievement 2014/15 planned target to deviations 
2013/14 Actual 

Achievement for 
2014/15 

3. Feasibility study for Integration platform Feasibility study for replacement Feasibility Report None None 
replacement of legacy architecture of legacy system completed developed. 
system completed. developed. (SOCPEN). 

Payment Architecture developed. Payment architecture None None 
developed. 

Table 7: Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements: Corporate Services 

Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-proaramme 1.3: Corporate Services 

Strateaic obiective: To provide human capital manaaement, facilities and auxiliarv services 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on deviations 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

1. Review of functions Skills audit for grants Review of functions and Terms of Reference for Terms of Reference EXCO decided that the scope 
and skills gap value chain was skills gap analysis organisational review were not approved. should be broadened to 
analysis conducted. conducted. conducted. were developed and include review of business 

consulted. processes. 

2. Number of HCM Audit of HCM policies Six (6) HCM Policies Six (6) HCM Policies None None 
policies reviewed. was conducted and 2 reviewed: reviewed: 

monitoring reports on Staffing Practices Staffing Practices 
HCM policy Leave Leave 
implementation were Bereavement Bereavement 
produced. Resettlement Resettlement 

Performance Performance 
Management Management 
Study Aid Study Aid 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-Drooramme 1.3: Coroorate Services 

Strateaic objective: To Drovide human caDital manaaement, facilities and auxiliarv services 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 2014115 

3 Percentage of 1.2% of staff 2% of persons with 1.1 % (117 out of a target 

persons with complement is disabilities recruited. of 215 people with 

disabilities recruited. comprised of people disability in the 
with disabilities (105 employment of the 
out of 8 700). Agency). 

21 people with disability 
were appointed during 
the 2014/2015 financial 
vear. 

4. Employment Labour Relations Employment Relations Draft Employment 
relations model model developed. model developed. Relations model 
developed and developed. 
implemented. 

5. Percentage of 243 labour relations 100% of labour 100% (445 of 445) of 
labour relations finalised. relations cases initiated labour relations cases 
cases initiated within prescribed time initiated within 
within prescribed frames. prescribed time frame. 
time frames. 

6. Percentage of Vetting forms were 100% of identified 100% of identified 
identified submitted prioritised employees submitted employees submitted for 
employees newly appointed staff for vetting. vetting. 
submitted for (270). 
vetting. A total of 402 employees 

Pre-employment were identified and 
screening was vetting forms submitted 
conducted for 796 to the State Security 
new appointments. Agency (SSA). 

Deviation from Comment on deviations 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

0.9% Attracting people with 
disabilities was a challenge, 
irrespective of SASSA having 
approached relevant agencies 
to provide these resources via 
a head-hunting process. 

Employment Relations Consultation with organised 
model not approved. labour took longer than 

expected. 

None None 

None None 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.3: Corporate Services 

Strategic objective: To provide human capital management, facilities and auxiliary services 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 

7. Number of local 68 local offices 72 local offices 52 local offices 
offices improved. improved. improved. improved: 

,/ Eastern Cape -3 
,/ Free State - 5 
,/ Gauteng-10 
,/ KwaZulu-Natal - 4 
,/ Limpopo - 10 
,/ Mpumalanga -5 
,/ North West-8 
,/ Northern Cape -3 
,/ Western Cape - 4 

8. Number of pay 48 pay points 60 pay points 144 pay points 
points improved. improved. Improved. improved: 

,/ Eastern Cape -5 
,/ Free State -0 
,/ Gauteng -19 
,/ KwaZulu-Natal -0 
,/ Limpopo -19 
,/ Mpumalanga - 43 
,/ North West -33 
,/ Northern Cape -25 
,/ Western Cape - 0 

9. Number of local Monitoring report on 34 local offices audited 48 local offices audited 
offices audited in physical security. in line with the MPSS. in line with MPSS. 
line with the MPSS. 

10. Phased-in Phased-in Phased-in 
implementation of implementation of implementation of 
biometric access to biometric access to biometric access to 
buildings for staff. buildings for staff. buildings for staff not 

achieved. 

Deviation from Comment on deviations 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

20 local offices not Consultation with landlords to 
improved. reach agreement on 

refurbishment took too long. 
SASSA had in some 
instances to find alternative 
office accommodation. The 
NDPW had to follow a 
procurement process to 
acquire such accommodation. 

84 additional paypoints Some improvements are only 
were improved. basic amenities - not 

necessarily physical 
improvements or construction 
of structures. 
SASSA was allowed to retain 
surplus funds that were used 
to refurbish more pay points 

14 additional local This is a dual function 
offices audited. performed by SAPS and 

SASSA Security Managers. 
The SAPS availability made it 
easier for SASSA to over-
perform 

The project was A team was deployed to 
withdrawn. conduct further analysis of the 

facilities occupied by SASSA. 
This exercise will enable the 
Agency to strengthen the 
Terms of Reference. 
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Table 8: Strategic objectives, performance. Indicators planned targets and actual achievements: Sub-programme 1.4: Financial Management 

Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.4: Financial Management 

Strategic objective: Effective Financial Management 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target 2014/15 Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on deviations 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2014115 

1. Percentage of Out of a total of 9 667 100% of eligible Out of a total of 6 216 17.36% (1079) The deviation was largely 
eligible suppliers various suppliers 8 097 suppliers paid within 30 suppliers 5 137 were due to disputed invoices 
paid within 30 days. were paid within 30 days. days. paid within 30 days and lack of submissions 

This represents 83.76% This represents and supporting 
of the total suppliers as 82.64% of total documents. 
at 30 March 2014. suppliers as at 30 

March 2015. 

2. Percentage imple- 100% implementation of 100% implementation of 95% (103 out 108 audit 5% (five audit action Outstanding cases largely 
mentation of audit audit action plan audit action plan intervention action plan). plan interventions due to pending cases or 
action plan interventions in financial interventions in financial Implementation of audit outstanding) processes. One case is 
interventions in management. management. action plan intervention dependent on the 
financial in financial management finalisation of a court case. 
management. This represents a 95% .,' One case relates to 

achievement. an employee who 
appealed the decision 
to pay . 

.,' Three cases are for 
debtors that could not 
be finalised due to the 
movement of 
beneficiary files 
between regions. 
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.4: Financial Management 

Strategic objective: Effective Financial Management 

No. Performance Actual Achievement 
Indicator 2013/14 

3. Percentage of social 6% of social assistance 
assistance debts debts recovered to the 
recovered and/ or value of R6 279 879.60. 
written off. 

4. Percentage 32% increase in irregular 
reduction of expenditure from R47 
irregular 443 827 to R70 116 768. 
expenditure. 

Planned Target 2014/15 

10% of social assistance 
debts recovered and/or 
written off. 

The total amount of R25 
749 129.89 is the 10% 
target amount to be 
collected from a total 
debt of R257 491 298.94. 

50% (R 35 058 384.00) 
reduction of irregular 
expenditure. 

Actual Achievement Deviation from Comment on deviations 
2014/15 planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

12.65% (R32 584 573 2.65% More debts were written 
out of R257 491 298.94 (R6 835 488.17). off than recovered 
debt book) of social because most debtors are 
assistance debts unemployed. Some are 
recovered and/or deceased and 
written off to the value untraceable. After 
of R32 584 573.00. exhausting all debtors 

Out of R32 584 573.00 
recovery processes, some 
debtors were written-off 

reported, R 26 936 
accordingly. 

762.00 relates to debt 
write-offs and the More work was done on 
annual debt recovery the allocation of receipts. 
amounted to 

Debts that were provided 
R 5 647 810.04. 

for 2014/15 were followed 
up and as such those that 
were eligible for write-offs 
were written-off. 

42% (R 70,116,768- 8.21% The deviation was as a 
R 40 815 246.49) result of inadequate 
Irregular expenditure controls with regards to 
recorded. SCM processes. 

R 40 815 246.49 
The internal controls were 

irregular expenditure put in place towards the 

detected thus the 
end of the financial year 

irregular expenditure 
which are the following:-

increased by R 5 756 -Review of SCM Business
862.49. processes and legislative

framework.
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Programme 1: Administration 
Sub-programme 1.4: Financial Management 

Strategic objective: Effective Financial Management 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target 2014115 Actual Achievement Deviation from 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

.
.
.. 

············ 
.... ... 

·
············

··············
···· ········

············
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.
... ········ ······ 

.. s'o.1$_3�
·•3.:- ,,_ ... ,,, -

SASSA has a legal duty to pay your grant into the

SASSAbranded card's account.Any replacement

of a SASSA branded card can only be done at a 

legitimate SASSA office. Using any other product

or service may expose your SASSA card to

unnecessary risks. Look after your PIN and don't

share it with anyone. 

sassa
$OUTI4 Ai1UCAH S()CW..

SECUAlfY �ENCY 

Comment on deviations 

-Workshops on SCM
Processes and legislative
framework.

-Implementation of SCM
Compliance checklist.

-Development and
implementation of 
Irregular Expenditure
Guideline.

-Implementation of 
National Treasury
Instruction Notes.

- SCM Circulars
communicated through
Internal Communication.

delivery of social securltY services. 

-�---

For more information call: SASSAioU·f�ee: 0800 60 10 11 www.sassa.gov.za 

A leader In the 
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Table 9: Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance: Programme 1 

Target Strategy 

Number of internal audit reviews conducted on high-risk Ensure compliance with the Audit Plan . 
. ' 

• 

areas. 

Phased-in implementation of biometric authentication 
system piloted (SOCPEN-users). 

Develop and implement solution for scanning and 
storage of documents. 

Review of functions and skills gap analysis conducted. 

Percentage of eligible suppliers paid within 30 days. 

Percentage implementation of audit action plan 
interventions in financial management. 

Percentage reduction of irregular expenditure. 

Improvement of Local Offices. 

Changes to planned targets 
None 

• Strengthening capacity of the Internal Audit unit through co-sourcing of some of the internal audit
arrangements.

Develop a phase-in implementation plan prioritising high-risk offices. 
, 

This is a multi-year project and therefore the target per annum was revised to ensure alignment with realistic 
milestones. 

The work-streams to facilitate in-sourcing of the payment system will take over this responsibility in order to ensure 
that the structure and skills requirements cater for the current and the future needs of the organisation. 

Strengthening communication with suppliers to ensure that proper documentation is provided . 

Strengthen oversight role performed by internal control and improve operation of the Audit Steering Committee. 

Training on Supply Chain Management and improved planning. 

Strengthen consultations with landlords and other stakeholders to fast-track agreements on refurbishments. 

Table 10: Linking performance with budgets: Programme 1 

2013/2014 2014/2015 

Programme 1: Budget Actual {Over)/Under Budget Actual {Over)/Under 
Administration Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO 

Total 2 450 279 2 423 895 7 476 2 481 115 2 207 847 252 986 



• 

• 

3.2. Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Purpose 

The purpose of programme 2 is to provide for effective administration and implementation of the 

social assistance programme. The programme covers the administration and payment of Old Age 

Grant (OAG), Disability Grant (DG), Care Dependency Grant (COG), Foster Child Grant (FCG), Child 

Support Grant (CSG), War Veteran Grant (WVG) and Grant-in-Aid (GIA). In addition, the programme 

also administers and manages the provision of Social Relief of Distress (SRO). 

This programme is responsible for the core business of SASSA and ensures the implementation of 

the full value chain of grants administration. The functions relating to this programme cut across all 

levels within the organisation, including the day-to-day interface with the beneficiaries and clients. 

Description 

This programme aims to ensure that social assistance programme is administered in the most 

effective and efficient manner. The programme consists of the following processes: 

• Application management: screening and attesting of each applicant, the enrolment of the

applicant on the system, the actual capturing and verification of the application on the system

and quality assurance;

• Payment Management: the processing of payments, actual payments to beneficiaries and the

reconciliation of payments. It should be noted that part of this function is outsourced to a third

party namely Cash Paymaster Services (CPS). The in-house unit's responsibility is primarily

the management of the Service Level Agreement (SLA) between SASSA and the service

provider. The function is further responsible for designation and sourcing of pay point

infrastructure;

• Beneficiary Maintenance Management: the life certification as well as the maintenance of the
beneficiary data including grant reviews;

• Policy Implementation support includes development of systems and procedures, training and

management business systems that support the grant administration process; and

• Customer Care is responsible for promoting a customer-centric service offering to the
beneficiaries and clients. It further ensures the deployment of interventions to ensure access

to services by clients, especially in the most remote areas of the country as well as ensuring

the provision of information to all SASSA's stakeholders.

sassa 
SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY 

4400 1234 

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITYAGENCY(SASSA)ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 
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Table 11: Strategic objectives, performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements: Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Strategic objective: To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the administration of the social assistance programme 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 2014/15 Deviation from Comment on 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to deviations 

Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

1. Projected number of The total number of new 1 100 OOO The total number of new social 279 253 There was an increased 
new social grants social grant applications grants applications processed as demand for grants due 
applications processed as at 31 March at 31 March 2015 is 1 379 253. to outreach 
processed 2014 is 1 311 469. This is 

This represents a 25% over-
programmes. 

109% of the annual target. 
achievement against the annual 
target 

2 Projected number of The total number of grants 16 052 OOO The projected number of social 590 643 This is due to an 
social grants in in payment as at 31 March grants in payment as at 31 increased demand for 
payment 2014 is 15 932 473. March 2015 is social grants, as well as 

This is 96% of the annual 16 642 643. 
the increased threshold 
values for older persons 

target. 
This represents a 3.7% over- and disability grants. 

achievement against the annual 
target. 

3. Projected number of The total number of SRO 160 OOO The projected number of social 193 678 High uptake of social 
social relief of applications processed as relief of distress applications 

(121.05%) 
relief of distress 

distress applications at 31 March 2014 is 337 awarded was 353 678. applications awarded 
awarded 148. 

This represents a 121% over-
was due to an increase 
in the number of people 

This represents 1348.5% achievement against the annual 
experiencing hardship 

achievement against the target. 
and thus required 

annual target. 
immediate SRO 
intervention. The target 
set at the beginning of 
the financial year was 
based on the allocated 
budget for SRO. 
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Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Strategic objective: To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the administration of the social assistance programme 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 2014115 Deviation from 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

4. Percentage 458 827 of child grants 55%increase in the 597 459 of child grants below 1 24.79% 
increase in the take- between the ages of O to 1 take-up rates of year were in payment as at 31 
up rates of Child year were in payment. Child Support March 2015. 
Support Grants for Grants for eligible 

This represents a take-up rate of eligible children children below 1 
below 1 year year. 30.21 % of the children in this 

age category. There was an 
increase of 138 632 from the 
2013/14 financial year 
(458 827). 

Comment on 
deviations 

Due to increased 
demand, additional 
budget was allocated 
during the course of the 
year, allowing for the 
numbers of citizens to 
benefit from this 
programme to more 
than double. However, 
the initial targets were 
not adjusted in 
accordance with the 
increased allocation. 

The under-achievement 
is due to continued 
resistance by care 
givers to register their 
new-born babies for 
CSG, even where they 
qualify. This will require 
a concerted effort by 
SASSA to educate and 
reach pregnant 
mothers, to facilitate the 
application immediately 
after the birth of the 
child. 
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Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Strategic objective: To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the administration of the social assistance programme 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 2014/15 Deviation from 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

5. Percentage of new Of the total 1 311 469 90%(1 241 327) of A total of (99.6%) 1 373 768 of 132 441 
grant applications applications received 1 191 new grant new grant applications were 
processed within 21 910 were processed within applications processed within 21 working 
working days. 21 days. This represents processed within 21 days as at 31 March 2015. This 

91 % of the annual target. working days. is a 9.6% over-achievement 
against the annual target. 

6. Number of Foster Over 400 OOO reviews were 150 OOO of Foster 231 275 Foster Child Grant 81 275 
Child Grant reviews conducted for all grant Child Grant reviews reviews conducted. 
conducted. types. conducted. 

This represents 54% over-
achievement against the annual 
target. 

7. Number of outreach 465 wards had access to 420 outreach 714 outreach programmes 294 
programmes social assistance through programmes inclusive of Mikondzo conducted. 

(70%) inclusive of ICROP. inclusive of 
Mikondzo Mikondzo 

This represents a 70% over 

conducted. conducted. 
achievement against the annual 
target. 

Comment on 
deviations 

The achievement of this 
target is due to 
improved monitoring 
and management of the 
backlog and additional 
allocation of ICT 
resources to process 
applications at service 
points. 

The number of reviews 
had increased as part of 
the plan to resolve the 
backlog of Foster Care 
cases. In addition to the 
reviews targeted, 
approximately 81 OOO 
children over the age of 
18 years had to be 
reviewed to continue 
payment of the grant 
while the foster child 
was still regarded in 
some form of 
educational institution. 

The increase came as a 
result of stakeholder 
mobilisation through 
"Door- to-Door" 
interventions. 
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Programme 2: Benefits Administration and Support 

Strategic objective: To improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the administration of the social assistance programme 

No. Performance Actual Achievement Planned Target Actual Achievement 2014/15 Deviation from 
Indicator 2013/14 2014/15 planned target to 

Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

8. Credible payment •1 Biometric Data Biometric Data clean-up None 
database developed clean-up (including including investigations 
and operationalized investigations) conducted. 
(data factory) 

9. Options for SASSA Detailed Plan on Reports: Detailed Plan on 
payment system payments system 

Research Report on the 
payments system 

investigated for SASSA. not completed. 
Technology Solutions Feasibility. 

As-ls SASSA Beneficiary 
Registration, Grant and 
Distribution Processes. 

1 NB: This is a new 1argc1 relating 10 1he new paymeni model tha1 is under development 

Comment on 
deviations 

None 

The indicator to be 
carried over into the 
new financial year as 
this is a project that is 
time-bound. 
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Table 12: Strategy to overcome areas of under-performance: Programme 2 

Target Strategy 

Percentage increase in the take-up rates of Child Multiple strategies to increase the take-up rates for 0-1 focuses on the following: 
Support Grants for eligible children below 1 year. 

Communication and marketing in order to ensure that eligible care-givers understand the Means Test Threshold; • 

• Mikondzo - maximising the reach of the Mikondzo project; 
' 

• Door-to-Door Campaigns; and 

• Negotiations with Department of Health for co-location in order to capture the children immediately after birth, 

Changes to planned targets 

There were no changes made to the planned targets. 

Table 13: Linking performance with budgets: Programme 2 Benefits Administration 

2013/2014 
Programme / Activity/ Budget 
Objective 

To improve the effectiveness R'OOO 

and efficiency of the 
administration of the social 
assistance programme 
Total 3 860 770 

.. �· .......
.... . .... ..

. 

. s 'o_ '?._§'g.,
- ...

\. ' or,61� 

2014/2015 
Actual (Over)/Under- Budget 
Expenditure Expenditure 

R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO 

4179675 - 318 905 4036 473 

, 

. . .
. . . . .

. . . . . . . . .
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . . . 
. 
.... ...

.... ... 

SASSA has a legal duty to pay your grant into the

SASSAbranded card's account.Any replacement

of a SASSA branded card can only be done at a

legitimate SASSA office. Using any other product

or service may expose your SASSA card to 

unnecessary risks. Look after your PIN and don't

share it with anyone. 

� \'l.�,. 

' ,.,.oo � 
or,'l.�I'> 

11, 

Actual 
Expenditure 

R'OOO 

4026 598 

sassa
S,O\Jffl Al1'1GAN soew,.

r.t:CI.JArfY ,.QtNCY 

A leader In the delivery of social securltY services. 

�� 
� 

-

For more inform�on call: SASSAE)l·free: 0800 60 10 11 www.sassa.gov.za 

(Over)/Under-
Expenditure 

R'OOO 

9 875 
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4. REVENUE COLLECTION

Table 14: Revenue Collection 

2013/2014 2014/2015 

Sources of Revenue Estimate Actual Amount (Over)/Under Estimate Actual Amount (Over)/Under 
Collected Collection Collected Collection 

R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO R'OOO 

Non-Tax Revenue 1 224 4 313 - (3 089) 4695 4225 470 
administrative fees 

Total 1 224 4313 - (3 089) 4695 4225 470 

...........
.
.................

.......................
...................

..................
.................

......................
......

A leader in the delivery of social security services. 

SASSA has a legal duty to pay your grant into the

SAS SA branded card's account. Any replacement

of a SASSA branded card can only be done at a

legitimate SAS SA office. Using any other product

or service may expose your SASSA card to

unnecessary risks. Look after your PIN and don't

share it with anyone.

sassa
SOUTH AFRICAN S0C1Al SECURITY AGENCY 

For more infonnation call: SASSAto!l-f,ee: 0800 60 10 11 www.sassa.gov.za



PART C: 

GOVERNANCE 
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1. INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, 
controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity's 
enabling legislation and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is 
applied through the prescripts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with 
the principles contained in the King's Ill Report on Corporate Governance. 

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority as well as management of the public entity 
are responsible for corporate governance. 

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

There were 5 briefings to the Portfolio Committee during the financial year under review, where both 
the Department and SASSA presented the Strategic Plan, the Annual Performance Plan and 
Quarterly Performance Reports. The following are the details of these engagements: 

• 24-25 February 2014, briefing by the Department of Social Development to the Portfolio
Committee on issues emanating from SASSA.

• 09-10 September 2014, briefing to the Portfolio Committee on Social Development.

• 15-16 September 2014, Portfolio Committee on Social Development.

• 23-25 September 2014, Portfolio Committee on Social Development.

• 18 March 2015, Portfolio Committee meeting.

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

During the period under review the following reports were submitted to the Executive Authority on the 
dates indicated. In addition, there were ongoing engagements between the executive Authority and 
SASSA's top management. 

Table 15: Reports submitted to the Executive Authority 

Report 

Annual Performance Report 2013/14 

4th Quarter Performance Report 2013 

1st Quarter Institutional Performance and Status of Social Grants Report 2014 

2nd Quarter Performance Report 2014 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

Date 

04 September 2014 

27 May 2014 

12 August 2014 

18 November 2014 

SASSA developed a risk management strategy, which includes a fraud prevention plan. These 
documents assist in guiding the process of identifying and managing risks. The strategy is reviewed 
regularly to ensure that it remains current and relevant. The Risk Management Committee was 
appointed and has been functional during the period under review. 

The risk management process enables SASSA to prioritise and direct its limited resources to areas 
that need urgent attention and forms an integral part of effective corporate governance. Risk 
treatment plans and corrective measures were developed, which must be implemented and monitored 
by all line function managers in SASSA. 

During the 2014/15 financial year SASSA completed a comprehensive operational risk and fraud risk 
assessment, to confirm the validity of existing risks and to identify emerging risks that threaten the 
attainment of the SASSA's objectives to optimise opportunities that enhance SASSA's performance. 
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5. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Internal Control Unit performed the following activities during the financial year ended on 31 

March 2015. 

Secretariat of the Financial Misconduct Board of SASSA (FMB) 

In compliance with sections 83 to 86 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act No. 1 

of 1999), (as amended) (PFMA), SASSA identifies and records all incidents of financial misconduct, 

investigates them and takes appropriate action against responsible officials. 

The Internal Control Unit served as the secretariat of the Financial Misconduct Board (FMB), and 

assisted in the investigation and collation of information relating to incidents of financial misconduct. 

Investigation reports were presented at the FMB meetings for deliberation and to provide 

recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on the appropriate action to be instituted 

against responsible officials. The Unit prepared the reports on cases of financial misconduct for 

submission to the Audit Committee of SASSA and to the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA). 

Coordination of audit information (projects) 

The Internal Control Unit was responsible for the coordination of audit projects conducted by Auditor 

General of South Africa (AGSA). The activities included making sure that information requested for 

audit is submitted to the audit team within the stipulated time-frames, providing advice to the other 

units regarding matters related to the audit, preparing and keeping accurate registers of audit findings 

and requests for information from the audit team, as well as doing follow-ups on any outstanding 

matters with regard to the audit. 

The unit also provided secretariat services to Audit Steering Committee of SASSA, serving as the 

scribe during meetings between AGSA and SASSA, keeping record of all audit-related information, 
such as copies of management letters, audit engagement letters and other reports pertaining to the 

audit information as may be required. The unit is also charged with the responsibility of ensuring that 

the audit fees due to the AGSA are paid on time and that challenges in this regard are communicated 

to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer in time. 

Coordination and consolidation of the reports on the implementation of the audit action plan 

The Internal Control Unit is responsible for developing a template for the preparation of the audit 

action plan, as well as the distribution of the template to all affected branches and units of SASSA to 

enable them to prepare action plans in respect of the corrective actions to be implemented in order to 

resolve issues raised in the audit findings. The progress in the implementation of the audit action plan 

was monitored on a monthly basis and reports were also submitted to AGSA and SASSA's Audit 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Monitor, analyse and follow up on compliance with the policies of SASSA and relevant 

legislation (PFMA, Treasury Regulations, etc). 

The Internal Control Unit is also required to assist with regard to the monitoring of compliance with 

policies and procedures of SASSA, as well as applicable legislative prescripts. In keeping with the 

above requirement, the Internal Control Unit kept registers of incidents of financial misconduct 

committed by officials during the financial year. 

The unit also assisted in the preparation and consolidation of reports on irregular, fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure for presentation to the AGSA, the Audit Committee and other relevant 

stakeholders through disclosure notes in the annual financial statements. The cases were 

investigated, and discussed with the relevant policy stakeholders, as well as the affected officials. 

Lessons learned from all the reported incidents were used to update the policies and develop 

procedure manuals to advise officials on the appropriate conduct. 
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6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Internal Audit and Audit Committees 

Key activities and objectives of the internal audit function and a summary of audit work done 

The key activities of the Internal Audit function of SASSA has been to provide independent and 

objective assurance and consulting services aimed at adding value and improving SASSA's 

operations as well as achieving set objectives for the 2014/2015 financial year. Internal audit reviews 

focused on high-risk areas relating to the following: 

• Grant application and payment processes
• File reconstruction of beneficiaries
• Financial administration processes including asset management and accounts payable
• Human Capital Management processes, which included leave management, recruitment,

selection and the appointment of suitable candidates
• General controls in respect of Business Continuity Management and an IT Disaster Recovery

Plan

Key activities and objectives of the Audit Committee 

The role of the Audit Committee is to provide an advisory and oversight function and to consider the 

internal Audit Plans and activities of SASSA and management's control and good governance. The 

Committee takes a special interest in all matters that affect how SASSA is audited and also takes 

note of external audit plans and activities. It provides channels for communication between 

management, internal auditors and the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA). Control by the Audit 

Committee influences the organisational status of the Department Internal Audit and fosters an 

independent climate for their operation. 

The key activities of the Audit Committee for the 2014/15 financial year included the following: 

• Approval of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15;
• Noting of the external audit plan of AGSA for 2014/15;
• Reviewing of both the AGSA and internal audit reports and related management action plans to

address audit exceptions;
• Reviewing of the 2013/14 Annual Financial Statements;
• Reviewing of the Annual Report for 2013/14; and
• Reviewing and making recommendations in respect of the risk management and financial

misconduct board processes.

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 

� . 



• 

Attendance of audit committee meetings by audit committee members for the period 01 April 2014 to 
31 March 2015 (refer to the table below). 

Table 16: Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings 

Name Qua I ification Date appointed 

Mr B Mahlangu Chartered Accountant 01 November 2012 
(Chairperson) 

Prof. J Kleynhans Chartered Accountant 01 November 2012 

Prof. DP van der Nest Doctor Technologiae 01 November 2012 
(Internal Auditina) 

Ms L Khumalo Bachelor of Law (LLB) 01 November 2012 

Mr J Minnie B. Proc. Degree; 01 November 2012 
Attorney of the High
Court of South Africa

Adv. MB Madumise B. Proc. Degree; 01 January 2015 
Bachelor of Law (LLB);
MBA; Graduate
Diploma in
International Trade
Law

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Date membership No.of 
term ended meetings 

attended 

30 October 2014 5 

30 October 2014 3 

30 October 2014 4 

Active 6 

Active 6 

Active 1 

The PFMA compliance check-list was developed in line with Treasury Regulations to monitor 
compliance. Various internal controls were implemented to ensure compliance with laws and 
regulations within SASSA. Delegations of authority are also in place to ensure compliance and 
accountability. 

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The Public Service Code of Conduct imposes a duty on all public servants to report any "knowledge 
or suspicion of fraud and corruption or any other offence or act prejudicial to the public interest". 
The Fraud Management and the Compliance Department's Fraud Prevention Strategy comprise the 
following documents: 

• Fraud Prevention Policy

• Fraud Prevention Plan

• Whistle-blowing Policy

• Fraud Response Plan
• Code of Conduct and Ethics

• Disciplinary Code
• Integrity Policy

9. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

In line with public service regulations, including the SMS Handbook, all senior managers are expected 
to declare their financial interest in writing on an annual basis. With the view to minimising conflict of 
interest during the bid processes, members of evaluation committees and bid adjudication committees 
must sign declaration of interest forms at every sitting of these committees. In addition, all Supply 
Chain Management (SCM) officials are required to complete declaration of interest forms upon 
appointment. In instances where conflict of interest was identified, the matter was reported to Internal 
Audit to investigate. The matter was then referred to Labour Relations to institute disciplinary 
procedures against the transgressors . 
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10. CODE OF CONDUCT

The SASSA Code of Conduct is guided by the Public Service Code of Conduct and other legislative 

requirements that govern ethical behaviour in the public service. SASSA's Code is values and rules

based; hence, it is called the Code of Conduct and Ethics. It was therefore constructed to prevent 
unethical behaviour via the stipulated rules and to promote ethical behaviour via the set ethical 

standards and values that go beyond the law. This is where SASSA values are enacted as SASSA's 

culture - via stakeholder and employee relations. 

The SASSA Code of Conduct and Ethics is continuously being institutionalised throughout SASSA, by 

employing both the compliance and the integrity model via ethical risk analysis; communication and 

awareness of findings thereof, training, policy advice, recruitment and selection. Where a breach of 

the Code is observed, the observations are communicated to the relevant internal branch within 

SASSA, based on the observed transgression. 

11. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

SASSA views health, safety and environmental issues with the seriousness they deserve. Deliberate 

efforts are made to ensure that the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 

1993) is complied with. 

SASSA developed and implemented an Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Strategy. The OHS 

Strategy provides for the establishment of the National and Regional Occupational Health and Safety 

Committees to ensure compliance with the OHS Act. 

To ensure that SASSA's workplace complies with the OHS Act, SASSA launched the Improvement of 

Local Offices Project, in order to improve the conditions of local offices throughout the country. 

A leader in the delivery of social security services. 
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12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

Audit Committee Members and Attendance 

The table below reflects attendance of Audit Committee meetings by Audit Committee Members for 
the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. 

Table 17: Audit Committee Members and Attendance 

Name Qualifications Internal If internal, Date appointed Date No. of 
or position in Resigned Meetings 

external the public attended 
entity 

Mr B Mahlangu Chartered External Not 1 November 2012 Contract 5 
(Chairperson) Accountant applicable ended 31 

October 

2014 

Prof. J Chartered External Not 1 November 2012 Contract 3 
Kleynhans Accountant applicable ended 31 

October 
2014 

Prof. D P van der Doctor External Not 1 November 2012 Contract 4 
Nest Technologiae applicable ended 31 

(Internal October 
Auditing) 2014 

Ms L Khumalo Bachelor of Law External Not 1 November 2012 Not 6 
(LLB) applicable applicable 

Mr J Minnie B. Proc. Degree; External Not 1 November 2012 Not 6 
Attorney of the applicable applicable 
High Court of
South Africa

Adv. B Bachelor of Law External Not 1 January 2015 Not 1 
Madumise (LLB); MBA; applicable applicable 

Graduate 
Diploma in 
International Law 

The table below reflects the Audit Committee Members that were appointed after the financial year 
end but were part of the review of the Annual Financial Statements as well as the Annual Report for 
the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. The meetings were held on 25 May 2015 and 27 July 2015 
respectively. 

Name Qualifications Internal or If internal, Date Date No. of 
external position in appointed Resigned Meetings 

the public attended 
entity 

Mr R Morar Chartered External Not 1 May 2015 Not 2 
(Chairperson) Accountant applicable applicable 

Mr O Latiff Chartered External Not 1 May2015 Not 2 
Accountant applicable applicable 

MrT MBA External Not 1 May 2015 Not 2 
Ndabankulu applicable applicable 
Mazwai 
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Audit Committee Responsibilities 

The Audit Committee reports that it complied with its responsibility arising from 51 (1) (a) (ii) of the 
Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations 27.1. The Audit Committee also 

reports that it adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, regulated 

its affairs in compliance with this charter and discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

The effectiveness of internal control 

Our review of the findings of the work of Internal Audit and Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA), 

which was based on the risk assessments conducted in SASSA, revealed certain weaknesses, which 

were then raised with management. 

The following internal audit work was completed during the period under review: 

• Grants administration processes
• File reconstruction process
• Financial administration processes, including asset management, payroll administration, human

resources management (Recruitment), debtor management, SIU debtors, facilities management

processes (Local Office Improvement), ICT disaster recovery process, business continuity

management process, ICT controls and follow-up of review processes.
• Follow up reviews on General Controls in respect of user access management to SOCPEN

(Grant Administration) and Oracle systems (Finance).

The following were areas of concern: 

• The effectiveness of the system of internal control was not at the desired level for the year under
review, as compliance with prescribed policies and procedures were lacking in some instances.

• Non-compliance resulted from a breakdown in the functioning of key controls, the most critical

being in the area of grants administration, in particular disability management.
• Certain high-risk areas were identified, where missing and incomplete critical documentation

remains an issue.
• Filling of critical posts.
• National Treasury Investigation on SCM processes.
• Payment Tender.
• Leases.
• Financial Misconduct Board (irregular expenditure).
• Although control over assets, especially movable assets, remains a concern, management has

shown commitment to resolving issues raised by Internal Audit and the AGSA. The necessary

action plans have been developed and are being implemented.

In-year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report 

SASSA has been reporting monthly and quarterly to the National Treasury as is required by the 

PFMA. The Audit Committee is of the view that the contents of quarterly reports of the Agency are 

satisfactory. However, the timely submission and quality of reports in terms of reporting non

achievement of certain targets and related expenditure and evidence to support achievements need 

to be improved. The reasons for non-achievement and action taken to address non-achievement 

must be clearly outlined in performance reports and a central repository for supporting evidence 

needs to be implemented. 

The Audit Committee reviewed the feedback on the progress made in the reconstruction of 

beneficiary files destroyed by fire in the KZN Region in the 2013/2014 financial year. The progress 

made was confirmed in the Interim Management Report of the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) 

for 2015. 
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The continued close co-operation between Audit Committee of SASSA and the Department of Social 
Development (DSD) should also be noted. The secondment of the Chairperson of the DSD Audit 

Committee to serve as a member on the SASSA Audit Committee was effected. 

Internal Audit reports on grants administration-related projects and progress on management action 
plans relating to the AGSA report for 2013/2014 were reported on at meetings of SASSA and DSD 
Audit Committees. 

The Audit Committee met with the Executive Authority to discuss its assessment of the control 
environment within SASSA. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements to be included in the 

annual report and the Accounting Authority report for submission to the Auditor General South Africa. 

Auditor General of South Africa's Report 

We have reviewed the SASSA's implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and we 
are still satisfied that the matters were adequately resolved, except for the following: 

• Record-keeping in respect of assets.
• Reconciling of financial transactions.
• Management of Social Assistance Debtors.
• Internal control deficiencies in some areas of financial management.

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) 
on the annual financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA. 

ROSHAN MORAR 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY 
(SASSA) 
27 July 2015 
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT 

1. INTRODUCTION

The Organizational Structure of SASSA provides for an approved establishment of 18 341 

employees, which was developed prior to its establishment in 2006. The structure made provision for 

the entire SASSA value chain - i.e. from beneficiary enrolment on the system to the actual payment 
of social grants. In addition to the core business posts, provision was also made for support services 

posts; namely, corporate support services, finance and human capital management. However, the 

actual payment of social grants continued to be outsourced to a third party after the establishment of 

SASSA. The reason was that SASSA was not ready to pay social grants by itself due to the fact that a 
payment model was still to be developed and qualified staff appointed. To date, the payment function 

remains outsourced to a third party, CPS, hence no budget was allocated to cater for all the posts 

relating to the outsourced service. Filling the entire structure, while this part of the value chain 

continues to be outsourced would lead to inefficiency. Abolishment of all unfunded posts was 

considered, but was found not to be a viable option as these posts will be required when SASSA 

eventually takes over the payment of social grants from the third party and the creation of new posts 

will be a laborious exercise. The state of affairs as explained above therefore gives an impression that 

SASSA continues to have a high vacancy rate. 

SASSA continues to promote effective and efficient management and development of its human 

capital to ensure achievement of its strategic goals and objectives in line with its mandate. A number 
of HCM strategic support interventions were deployed to respond to SASSA's intention to continue to 

provide a customer centric service to its clients. These were aligned to the following HR priorities: 

Capacity-building by the filling of critical posts, this entails the filling of prioritised critical posts that 

were approved during the third quarter of the 2013/2014 financial year. It resulted in the appointment 
of 1 055 Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) workers, 112 interns, 315 new permanent 

appointments, 356 internal promotions and 4 71 contract appointments. While these appointments 

were instrumental in augmenting the capacity of SASSA to respond to the needs of its beneficiaries, it 

also created job opportunities for the unemployed, as we all created an opportunity for experiential 
learning for young graduates. SASSA used various strategies to attract the right calibre of people to 

join its ranks, via the media, appointment via recruitment agencies as well as professional bodies and 

institutions. It is unfortunate that SASSA could not attain the targeted 2% of recruitment of people with 

disabilities despite all its attempts. 

The other priority was skills development for junior and middle managers. Four (4) training 

interventions were conducted to enhance the competency of junior and middle management staff 

members in respect of supervisory / managerial capabilities. This was done as part of SASSA's 

retention strategy as a growing organisation and enabled SASSA to retain the skills as reflected by 

the number of internal promotions mentioned in the preceding paragraph. The key areas of 

development were: 

• Supervisory Development Programme
• Middle Management Development Programme
• Customer Care Training
• Executive Development Programme

The third priority was the development of an intervention that seeks to build the relationship between 

employees and their supervisors with regard to employee performance, wellbeing and sound labour 

relations to enhance productivity. This resulted in the development of the Employment Relations 
Model being developed to increase employee value proposition. Consultation with organised labour 

was still in progress as at the end of the reporting period. In addition to the said model, SASSA further 

engaged in a policy review process, which resulted in the review of an additional 6 HCM policies. 
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The review was critical to capture new developments in the HR field, correct the weaknesses that 

were identified during implementation, as well as to promote best practice. These are: 
• Staffing practice
• Bereavement
• Resettlement
• Performance Management
• Study Aid
• Leave

SASSA continued to implement its performance management and development policy to 

communicate the expected level of performance and assess the individual performance of its 
employees. The performance assessments and moderation of all lower levels for the previous year 

was completed during the period under review. A few challenges were experienced as SASSA 
continued to implement the old policy, while the revised policy was being consulted on with organised 
labour. 

SASSA recorded a significant number of fraud cases committed by its own employees during the 

period under review. The investigation into these cases culminated in disciplinary proceedings 

instituted against the affected employees. A total of 445 disciplinary matters were initiated during the 

period under review. The decisive action by SASSA against its corrupt officials sent out a strong 
message of zero tolerance regarding all forms of misconduct. Having said that, SASSA continued with 

its employee wellness interventions to provide counselling, advice and emotional support to 

employees who were experiencing hardship. A total of 328 wellness interventions were achieved 

during the reporting period. A further 2 028 employees participated in various wellness interventions. 

In the next financial year, SASSA will finalise the process to review its establishment and structure in 
line with its capacity model. The recommendations of the Ministerial Advisory Committee on the 

payment model will also be used to guide the future workforce in terms of the required skills and the 

number of people to ensure effective implementation of the payment model. 

sassa 
SOUTH AFRICA SOCIAL SECURITY AGE CY 

4400 1234 5678 
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Table 18: Personnel Cost by Programme/ Activity/ Objective 

Programme/ Total Personnel Personnel 

Activity / Objective Expenditure for Expenditure exp. as a 

the entity (R'OOO) % of total 

(R'OOO) exp. 

(R'OOO) 

Office Of the CEO R 18 352 694 R 3 384 179 18% 

Fraud & Compliance R 11 139 534 R 10 879 524 98% 

Intergovernmental & R 944 916 R 907 573 96% 

Stakeholder 

Relations 

Enterprise RO RO 

Programme 

Management Office 

Security R 7 181 663 R4 713 934 66% 

Management 

Internal Audit & Risk R 100 338 825 R12 714 510 13% 

Management 

Corporate Services R 107 831 454 R 49 344 520 46% 

Finance R 98 906 581 R 48 723 339 49% 

Information & R 285 161 052 R 24 451 318 9% 

Communications 

Technology 

Grants R 21 668 519 R 20 033 401 92% 

Administration 

Grant Benefit R 2 002 452 648 R 14 025 882 1% 

Transfers 

Strategy & Business R 29 887 268 R 23 203 795 78% 

Development 

Gauteng R 388 492 420 R 263 148 507 68% 

Western Cape R 341 505 901 R 221 221 060 65% 

KwaZulu-Natal R 700 745 328 R 441 496 084 63% 

Mpumulanga R 274 077 919 R 181 685 441 66% 

Free State R 237 051 456 R 166 516 359 70% 

Limpopo R 379 576 138 R 264 730 940 70% 

Eastern Cape R 603 269 230 R 386 719 442 64% 

Northern Cape R 237 188 417 R 151 511 421 64% 

North West R 336 840 445 R 199 114 770 59% 

TOTAL R 6 182 612 411 R 2 488 525 998 40% 

No. of Average 

employees personnel 

cost per 

employee 

(R'OOO) 

10 R 338 418 

20 R 543 976 

1 R 907 573 

0 

15 R 314 262 

27 R 470 908 

112 R 440 576 

82 R 594 187 

38 R 643 456 

18 R 1 112 967 

67 R 209 342 

31 R748 510 

1187 R 221 692 

1045 R 211 695 

2268 R 194 663 

845 R215 012 

703 R 236 865 

1049 R 252 365 

1660 R 232 964 

645 R 234 901 

914 R 217 850 

*10 737 R231 477 

*Included in the personnel expenditure paid for the year are contracted employees, mainly interns,

which contracts expired by 31 March 2015. The statistics for the employment and vacancies matrix

show the number of employees as at 31 March 2015 and not for the year.
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Table 19: Personnel cost by salary band 

Level Personnel % of personnel No. of Average personnel 
Expenditure exp. to total employees cost per employee 

personnel cost 

Top Management R 18 101 595 0.73% 12 R 1 508 466 

Senior Management R 187 293 156 7.56% 203 R 922 626 

Professional Qualified R 546 741 433 22.07% 947 R 577 340 

Skilled R 722 316 630 29.15% 2432 R 297 005 

Semi-skilled R 942 647 527 38.05% 5092 R 185 123 

Unskilled R 71 425 658 2.88% 2053 R 34 825 

TOTAL R 2 488 525 998 100.00% 10737 R 231 771 

Table 20: Performance Rewards 

Level Number of Performance Personnel % of performance rewards 
employees Rewards Expenditure to total personnel cost 

Top Management 1 R 48 401 R 18 101 595 0.27% 

Senior Management 4 R 165 015 R 187 293 156 0.09% 

Professional Qualified 190 R 5 401 674 R 546 741 433 0.99% 

Skilled 543 R 9 223 425 R 722 316 630 1.28% 

Semi-skilled 940 R 10 154 211 R 942 647 528 10.77% 

Unskilled 5 R 34 822 R 71 425 657 0.05% 

TOTAL 1 683 R 25 027 549 R 2 488 525 998 1.01% 

The agency is still in the process of finalising the 2013/2014 performance assessments for top 

management 

OUT 
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Table 21: Training Costs 

Programme / Activity Personnel Training Training No. of Avg 
/ Objective Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Employees Training 

as a%of trained cost per 
Personnel employee 

Cost. 

Office OfThe CEO R3 384 179 R 94 OOO 2.78% 5 R 18 800 

Fraud & Compliance R 10 879 524 R- 0.00% 0 

Intergovernmental & R 907 573 R- 0.00% 0 

Stakeholder Relations 

Enterprise Programme RO R- 0.00% 0 

Management Office 

Security Management R4 713 934 R- 0.00% 0 

Internal Audit & Risk R12 714 510 R 1 520 883 11.98% 39 R 38 997 

Management 

Corporate Services R 49 344 520 R 3 080 003 6.25% 103 R 29 903 

Finance R 48 723 339 R 367 560 0.89% 49 R 7 501 

Information & R24 451 318 R 156 082 0.64% 26 R 6 003 

Communications 

Technology 

Grants Administration R 20 033 401 R 36 926 0.18% 31 R 1 191 

Grant Benefit R 14 025 882 R 530 800 3.79% 100 R 5 308 

Transfers 

Strategy & Business R 23 203 795 R 55 675 0.24% 10 R 5 567 

Development 

Gauteng R 263 148 507 R 2 459 684 0.94% 786 R 3 129 

Western Cape R 221 221 060 R 1 253 064 0.57% 388 R 3 230 

Kwazulu-Natal R 441 496 084 R 2 600 575 0.59% 339 R 7 671 

Mpumulanga R 181 685 441 R 1 580 013 0.87% 323 R4 892 

Free State R 166 516 359 R 1 707 123 1.03% 408 R 4 184 

Limpopo R 264 730 940 R 2 625 586 0.99% 413 R 6 357 

Eastern Cape R 386 719 442 R 3 727 963 0.97% 667 R 5 589 

Northern Cape R 151 511 421 R 604 658 0.40% 92 R 6 572 

North West R 199 114 770 R 1 419 235 0.71% 281 R 5 051 

TOTAL R 2 488 525 998 R 23 819 830 0.96% 4 060 R 5 867 

• 
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Table 22: Employment and Vacancies 

Branch/ Department / Region 2013/2014 2014/2015 2014/2015 2014/2015 %of 
No. of Approved No. of Vacancies Vacancies 
Employees Posts Employees 

Office Of The CEO 8 24 12 12 50.0% 

Fraud & Compliance 18 40 18 22 55.0% 

Intergovernmental & 1 4 1 3 75.0% 
Stakeholder Relations 

Enterprise Programme 0 17 0 17 100% 
Manaaement Office 

Security Management 17 23 15 8 34.8% 

Internal Audit & Risk 25 63 26 37 58.7% 
Management 

Corporate Services 101 234 112 122 52.1% 

Finance 74 184 79 105 57.1% 

Information & Communications 45 112 38 74 66.1% 
Technology 

Grants Administration 98 48 18 30 62.5% 

Grant Benefit Transfers 37 108 67 41 38.0% 

Strategy & Business 33 117 31 86 73.5% 
Development 

Gauteng 925 2 238 1 184 1 054 47.1% 

Western Cape 842 1 575 1 047 528 33.5% 

Kwazulu-Natal 1 614 3 903 2 266 1 637 41.9% 

Mpumulanga 539 1 593 843 750 47.1% 

Free State 569 1 948 703 1 245 63.9% 

Limpopo 959 1 927 1 050 877 45.5% 

Eastern Cape 1 361 3 597 1 672 1 925 53.5% 

Northern Cape 602 1 441 646 795 55.2% 

North West 832 1 787 914 873 48.9% 

Total 8 700 20983 10 742 10 241 48.8% 

*The total establishment for SASSA catered for the full value chain, which includes the payment
function. It should be noted that the payment has since SASSA's establishment been outsourced to a
third party. Filling the whole structure will amount to inefficiency.

Table 23: Employment and vacancies by salary band 

Level 2013/2014 2014/2015 2014/2015 2014/2015 %of 
No. of Approved No. of Vacancies Vacancies 
Employees Posts Employees 

Top Manaaement 14 17 12 5 29.4% 

Senior Management 197 315 200 115 36.5% 

Professional Qualified 937 2 242 945 1 297 57.9% 

Skilled 2 077 5 530 2 210 3 320 60.0% 

Semi-skilled 5 082 10 818 5 335 5 483 50.7% 

Unskilled 393 2 061 2 040 21 1.00% 

TOTAL 8700 20983 10742 10 241 48.8% 
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SASSA's recruitment policy makes provision for internal candidates to be given preference when 

posts are to be filled. During the period under review, a total of 83 posts were filled via the promotion 

of internal candidates. Eight (8) of these posts were senior management posts and the other 75 were 

professional qualified posts. Where posts could not be filled via internal promotions, vacant posts 

were advertised in national newspapers to attract the talent pool and where no suitable candidates 

were identified, a headhunting process was followed. SASSA also, in instances, counter-offered in 

line with its policy and retained employees who were offered employment in other organisations. 

Employment changes 

SASSA's voluntary attrition - i.e. resignations and transfers outside SASSA, was stable for the past 

three financial years. SASSA experienced a voluntary attrition of 3.1% for 2012/2013, a decrease to 

2.5% during 2013/14 and an increase to 4.4% during the 2014/2015 financial year. SASSA has an 

acceptable voluntary attrition rate of 4.4% measured against the norm of 5% for healthy 

organisations. 

Table 24: Employment changes 

Salary Band Employment at Appointments Terminations Employment 
beginning of at end of the 

period period 

Top Management 14 0 2 12 

Senior Management 197 9 16 200 

Professional Qualified 937 49 71 945 

Skilled 2 077 70 152 2 210 

Semi-skilled 5 082 632 398 5 335 

Unskilled 393 1 193 1 353 2 040 

TOTAL 8 700 1 953 1 992 10 742 

Table 25: Number of staff leaving and reasons 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving 

Death 42 2.1% 

Resianation 333 16.7% 

Dismissal 55 2.8% 

Retirement 76 3.8% 

Ill Health 2 0.1% 

Expiry of Contract 1 434 72.0% 

Other - Transfer 50 2.5% 

TOTAL 1 992 100% 

The highest number of people who left were contract workers who were appointed on fixed-term 

contracts for a specific project. Their contracts expired at the end of the term with the completion of 

the project for which they had been appointed to. This category includes EPWP workers and interns 

who were appointed for experiential learning. SASSA appointed 1 953 (which includes replacement, 

critical posts and contracts) staff members as an attempt to replace the employees whose services 
were terminated. The process to replace them commences soon after a determination of the criticality 

of the posts had been made. Some of the interns and EPWP workers were appointed on a permanent 

basis on expiry of their fixed-term contracts. 
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Table 26: Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal WarninQ 195 

Written Warning 100 

Final Written Warning 90 

Dismissal 60 

TOTAL 445 

Employment Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

SASSA experienced during the reporting period, a challenge with regards to attracting people with 
disabilities and white people. SASSA made a concerted effort to attract the afore-mentioned 
categories by advertising extensively in the print media and via headhunting, using professional 
organisations and organisations within the disability sector. The EE target clause was incorporate in 
the advertisements to attract the target groups in line with its EE Plan. 

Table 27: Equity targets and employment equity Status 

Levels 
MALE 

African Coloured Indian White 

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

Top ManaQement 4 5 1 2 0 0 1 1 

Senior Management 87 90 10 9 4 6 5 10 

Professional Qualified 440 225 53 31 21 16 24 30 

Skilled 765 1 151 79 133 32 57 22 95 

Semi-skilled 1 737 2 022 192 270 21 44 17 125 

Unskilled 696 351 55 55 0 6 3 20 

TOTAL 3 729 3844 390 500 78 129 72 281 

Levels 
FEMALE 

African Coloured Indian White 

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target 

Too Management 4 5 1 1 0 0 1 1 

Senior Management 75 81 7 7 6 6 6 9 

Professional Qualified 329 173 35 21 13 8 30 24 

Skilled 1 108 1 518 117 174 25 53 62 148 

Semi-skilled 3 007 3 225 269 346 31 55 61 196 

Unskilled 1 207 525 76 78 3 6 0 24 

TOTAL 5 730 5 527 505 627 78 128 160 402 

Levels Disabled Staff 

Male Female 

Current Target Current Target 

Top ManaQement 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 1 2 1 2 

Professional Qualified 3 6 1 3 

Skilled 12 25 12 32 

Semi-skilled 39 34 41 48 

Unskilled 3 4 4 5 

Total 58 71 59 90 
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1. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Authority's Responsibilities and Approval 

GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS 

1.1 Key Strategic priorities: 

SASSA's key priorities for 2014/15 are the following: 
• Reducing income poverty by providing social assistance to eligible individuals.
• Improving service delivery.
• Improving internal efficiency.
• Institutionalising social grants payment system within SASSA.

The following strategic objective statements informed the work of SASSA: 

• To ensure that eligible beneficiaries receive benefits due to them
• To improve the quality of service delivery to our customers
• To achieve a fully integrated and automated social assistance service
• To ensure that the Agency is optimally capacitated for optimal service delivery

1.2 The following projects were undertaken during the 2014-2015 Financial Year, in line with
the SASSA priorities: 

• Continued implementation of policies on social assistance.
• Management of Beneficiary Files Project.
• Social Relief of Distress (SRO).
• Automation of services.
• Customer Care improvement.
• Implementation of Audit action plan.
• Improvement of facilities (local offices and pay points)

1.3 During the period under review, SASSA recorded the following key achievement in line 
with the priorities; 

• Of the 36 total numbers of planned targets, 24 were achieved and this represents 67% of all
planned targets for 2014/15, and 12 not achieved.

• As of 31 March 2015 there were 16 642 643 benefits paid out to 11 248 336 beneficiaries.
• 1 379 253 new social grant applications were processed against the annual target of 1 100 OOO

which represents 25% over achievement against the annual target.
• A total number of 1 328 reported fraud and corruption cases were received and 950 were

investigated which represents 72% achievement against the annual target of 60%.
• 353 678 SRO applications were awarded against the annual target of 160 OOO, which represents

121 % over achievement.
• A total of 1 373 768 of new grant applications were processed within 21 working days, which

represents an 9.6% over achievement against the annual target of 1 241 327.
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1.4 Revenue and expenditure 

Revenue comprises mainly transfers from the Department of Social Development. Another 
insignificant amount of revenue is derived from administrative fees. Total revenue for the period under 
review amounted to R6, 521 billion of which R6, 517 billion were the transfers. 

The strategic focus of the South African Social Security Agency is on the administration, management 
and payment of social assistance grants. Thus, the bulk of expenditure during the period under review 
was on compensation of employees and payments towards the cash contractor who has been 
contracted to disburse grant monies to beneficiaries. These two items made up about 38% and 30% 
of the total revenue. The agency's focus has been on making citizens' dealings with government 
easier, through better delivery and coordination of services. All social grant beneficiaries, including 
children, were required to re-register for their social grants. Included in this process was implementing 
a biometric card based payment system. The agency embarked on significant media and 
communication campaigns to inform beneficiaries of the re-registration process. 

1.5 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

1.5.1 Irregular Expenditure 

The amount of irregular expenditure incurred during the 2014/15 financial period was R 40,787,746. 
This amount is due to continuing with services where contracts have expired (mostly leases), non
compliance to SCM processes and not advertising in the Government Tender Bulletin. 

All incidents of irregular expenditure are investigated and disciplinary action is instituted against 
responsible officials. A total amount of R858 138 was condoned by the Agency during the year under 
review. 

As it was reported in the year 2013/2014, the Office of the Accountant-General reviewed all stages of 
the procurement process followed by the Agency to appoint a service provider for Diagnostic Risk 
Assessment, implementation plans and pay points risk assessment. The service provider was paid 
R16 815 110. It is anticipated that the report will be submitted to SASSA during the first quarter of the 
new financial year. 

The investigation by the Office of the Accountant-General regarding the appointment of a forensic 
investigation company has been finalized and the report was submitted to the Minister of Social 
Development for consideration. The accounting treatment of this transaction will only be finalized 
once SASSA receives a directive from the Minister. However, it should be noted that one of the 
companies which were not appointed has instituted legal action against SASSA. The total amount of 
money paid for this contract as at March 2015 amounts to R49 564 435. 

A further payment for office accommodation leases amounting to R196 403 492 was paid to a 
landlord, this matter is still before the courts. 

In 2012, the agency expanded the scope of the contract with the service provider and extended the 
bulk enrolment period of social assistance beneficiaries to include children and procurators. 
Subsequently the service provider invoiced the agency for services rendered to an amount of 
R 316,447,361 which was paid in 2014/15 year and the payment in question is currently under review 
to reconfirm all stages of the procurement process followed to conclude this transaction. 

1.5.2 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

A total amount of R 7,085, 159 was classified as fruitless and wasteful expenditure as at 31 March 
2015. This amount is made of an opening balance amounting to R4 025 911 which represents 
amongst others, claims in respect of damages to hired vehicles, travel and hotel related no shows. 
interest on late payments and other losses. A total amount of R1 860 872 was condoned and R382 
103 was raised as recoverable . 
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Disciplinary action is continuously being instituted against officials for non-compliance with policies, 

procedures and legislation through the administration of the Financial Misconduct Board. 

Furthermore, the agency has embarked on a process to review and strengthen the internal controls in 

areas mostly affected by incidents of noncompliance with a view to close all the gaps. 

1.6 Requests for rollover of funds 

A request to retain a surplus of RS0,724,717 million from the previous financial year was approved by 

the National Treasury. 

1.7 Supply Chain Management 

The supply chain management policies, procedures and processes are constantly under review to 

align them to the applicable Acts, Regulations, prescripts, practice notes and generally recognized 

accounting practices (GRAP). All key positions are in progress to be filled. The challenge experienced 

is mostly the non-compliance to supply chain management prescripts by the Agency and non

compliance matters have been referred to the Financial Misconduct Board for further handling. 

1.8 Audit Matters in the previous year 

The agency developed an audit action plan to address all audit findings raised in the previous year. 
Progress report in respect of the audit findings is monitored monthly and reported to the Audit 

Committee and the Auditor General of South Africa. 

2. SERVICES RENDERED BY SASSA

SASSA was established in terms of the South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 with the 

primary purpose of being the sole entity responsible for the payment of social grants to beneficiaries 

throughout the country for the different grant types, namely; 

Old Age Grant; 

War Veterans Grant; 

Child Support Grant; 

Care Dependency Grant; 

Foster Child Grant; 
Disability Grant; and 

Grant in aid. 

In addition to the above grant types, the Agency also administers the Social Relief of Distress (SRO) 

programme, an intervention aimed at providing temporary relief to a family which experiences 

temporary distress. 

3. INVENTORIES

The closing balance for the current year's inventory is R23.4 million. The closing balance of 

inventory for the prior year is R16.5 million. The Agency continued to apply the first in first out 

(FIFO) method for valuing inventory, in line with the Accounting Policy. 

SASSA Inventory General Ledger Inventory General Ledger Closing Balance 

Opening Balance at 31st March 2015 

TOTAL R16 465 708 R23 369 723 

4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

SASSA fully believes in the principle of accountability for the delivery of its services and expenditure 

on allocating public resources. The Annual Performance Plan (2014/15) was submitted to the 

Minister, Presidency and National Treasury as per Treasury guidelines. The APP was tabled in 

March 2014. The Annual Report (2013/14) for the period ended 31 March 2014 was submitted within 

the prescribed time frame. 
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SASSA, as a public institution, is expected to account to all relevant governance structures entrusted 
with the responsibility to ensure delivery of services to the citizens as well as spending on public 
funds. 
4.1 Annual Performance Plan and Performance Agreement 

The Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 require the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to annually agree with the Executive Authority on the key performance 
objectives, performance indicators as well as targets. In this regard the Minister reviewed and 
approved the APP of the Agency, which outlined the key deliverables and targets for the year. 
Furthermore, a performance agreement was signed between the Minister and the CEO to agree on 
service levels. The quarterly performance reports were useful as they provided a tool that the 
Minister utilized to monitor performance against the set targets. 

4.2 Internal Audit and the Audit Committee 

The internal audit function of SASSA has provided independent and objective assurance and 
consulting services aimed at adding value and improving SASSA's operations and achieving set 
objectives for the 2014/2015 financial year. Internal audit reviews focused on high risk areas relating 
to grants administration and critical support functions within SASSA. Internal Audit served as a 
valuable source of information for both the Audit Committee of SASSA and the National Department 
of Social Development (NDSD) to make informed recommendations on risk management, 
governance and control processes. Close co-operation between the internal audit functions of SASSA 
and NDSD has further contributed to providing assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
controls relating to the high risk areas impacting on service delivery by SASSA. Interaction between 
the Audit Committees of SASSA and NDSD and senior management of SASSA has further 
contributed to the addressing of control weaknesses identified by both Internal Audit and the AGSA. 

4.3 Risk Management 

SASSA has developed the risk management strategy which includes a fraud prevention plan. These 
documents assist in guiding the process of identifying and managing risks. The strategy is reviewed 
regularly to ensure that it remains current and relevant. The CEO has appointed a Risk Management 
Committee and it has been fully functional during the year under review. 

The Risk Management Process enables SASSA to prioritise and direct its limited resources to areas 
that need urgent attention and forms an integral part of effective corporate governance. Risk 
treatment plans and corrective measures were developed, which must be implemented and monitored 
by all line function managers in SASSA. 

During the 2014/15 financial year SASSA completed a comprehensive operational risk and fraud risk 
assessment, to confirm the validity of existing risks and to identify emerging risks that threaten the 
attainment of the SASSA's objectives and to optimise opportunities that enhance the performance of 
SASSA. 

4.4 Compliance and Fraud Management 

SASSA has linked its Fraud Prevention Strategy to Risk Management. During 2014/15 Fraud Risk 
Assessments were conducted at Head Office, the focus areas were Grant Administration, Information 
and Communication Technology and Supply Chain Management. The Fraud Risk Assessment was 
also conducted in all 9 SASSA regions which included five high risk offices per Region that is districts 
and local offices which have been identified through previous investigations as fraud hotspots. 

During 2014/15 financial year, a total of 1,328 cases were received of which 950 were finalised, 
amounting to R29, 138,757. Up to 31 March 2015, the Agency suspended 266 officials and 
dismissed 53. Eleven cases were referred to Law Enforcement Agencies during the financial year, 
with a resultant conviction of five officials. 

The Department investigated 94 reported money lending cases of which 64 suspects were identified. 
Six thousand three hundred and fifty SASSA cards and R 586,486 in cash were confiscated. SASSA 
has over the year identified syndicate fraud involving SASSA cards . 
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Sixteen (16) private persons including 3 officials were apprehended with 280 SASSA cards, a speed 

point machine and a laptop, which was later linked to 2 separate robbery incidents at SASSA offices 

in KZN. Thirteen persons turned state witnesses while two CPS officials were sentenced to 15 years 

imprisonment each. 

Three other officials were arrested and dismissed and their case is at court for having created 55 

ghost beneficiaries, amounting to of R 752,460. 

SASSA hosted the 2nd Anti-Corruption Conference on 30 and 31 March 2015, under the theme 
"Ensuring human rights for all through a fraud free social grants system". The Conference was 

attended by the Minister of Social Development and the Justice Crime Prevention Security Cluster 
Ministers. Approximately 1,300 delegates representing private institutions, Government Departments 

and Law Enforcement Agencies attended. 

The conference pledge was signed to encourage greater coordination and interaction between the 

Justice Crime Prevention and Security Cluster and the aligned role-players to mount a united front 

against crime and corruption, and to continue with focused crime reduction and activities by Law 

Enforcement Agencies, coupled with dedicated prosecution and court related activities. 

Outcomes of the Conference included strengthened partnership and continued interaction between 

the various Departments present, integrated and holistic approach with respect to the prevention of 

fraud and corruption in SASSA, and improved detection through internal and external reporting 

mechanisms. 
Media coverage included 6 outside radio broadcasts, 3 radio interviews, 2 post event radio interviews, 

1 TV coverage (ANN? TV News), and 7 newspaper articles. 

4.5 Code of Conduct and Ethics 

SASSA's nature of business, namely; cash transfers, renders it susceptible to fraud and corruption. 

The year under review saw efforts to minimize the risk of unethical conduct intensified through a 

number of ethics interventions. Employees at different levels at regional, district, and local offices 

were taken through ethics training. Furthermore ethics assessment was conducted based on 

prevalence of labour relations cases reported to assess ethical health of the organization. The 

declaration of interest form for employees on levels between 5 and 12 was developed. SASSA in 
consultations with the Public Service Commission obtained approval for the implementation of the 

declaration of interest for these levels. SASSA further continued to record an increase in the level of 

compliance with regards to the declaration of financial interest by its senior management. 

4.6 Delegations of authority 

The Agency continued to implement its finance and human resource delegations to improve 

efficiency and effectiveness. The decentralised delegations empowered regional managers and other 

officials to take prompt decisions to fast track service delivery. The delegations were instrumental in 

improving efficiency, activeness and accountability. The Agency has, over the years, lost millions of 

Rands to fraud and corruption due to poor internal controls within the grants administration process. 
To this end, the delegations relating to approvals within the value chain i.e. application to approval 

process were reviewed. The approval of high value payments to beneficiaries was elevated to a 

more senior level to improve control and reduce fraud, corruption and leakages. As a result, SASSA 

saw a significant decrease in large amounts payable to some beneficiaries. 

4.7 Employee participation and representation 

SASSA continued to ensure that the views of its workforce are represented and taken into account 

in decision making. The relationship that SASSA has built with organized labour was helpful in 

maintaining harmony between SASSA, the employer and its employees. However, the relationship 

was not without challenges. SASSA's decision to cancel the appeals process as part of its 

disciplinary code and procedure was successfully challenged by organized labour. On the other 
hand, Commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration ruled in SASSA's favour on a number 
of other labour related matters. This is a clear demonstration of the level of engagement between 

SASSA and organized labour on labour matters. Furthermore, consultation on policy matters 

continued through the SASSA National Bargaining Forum (SNBF). 
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4.8 Governance structures 

SASSA continued to strengthen its formal governance structures to facilitate communication and 
informed decision-making. The Executive Management Committee (EXCO) is the highest decision 
making structure, whose primary responsibility is to make policy pronunciations on all matters of 
SASSA. SASSA recognized the importance of broader consultation on policy implementation and 
took a decision to expand its Management Committee (MANCO) to include the second highest level 
management in the structure. Various technical committees were also in place to facilitate decision
making, infom1ation sharing and accountability. These include the Bid Adjudication Committee, the 
Grants Administration Forum and the Financial Misconduct Board. 

The Department of Social Development has an oversight role over SASSA, a responsibility that 
requires regular interaction and reporting between these institutions. A protocol document was jointly 
developed to agree on the roles and the rules of engagement. 

5. DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES OR ACTIVITIES TO BE DISCONTINUED

No significant portion of the SASSA's operations was discontinued during the year under review. 

6. ASSET MANAGEMENT

Newly acquired assets (Additions and transfer in) to the value of R 264 million of property, plant & 
equipment; and intangible assets to the value of R 683 thousand were added in the fixed asset 
register. Land to the value of R 2,6 million was derecognized in line with GRAP standards. SASSA 
has implemented the GRAP standards relevant to the management and accounting of assets to 
ensure that assets are maintained to a desired level of service whereby assets should provide service 
at the lowest life cycle cost. The internal controls in compliance with the asset management policy 
and the treasury guidelines for the period under review were implemented. SASSA embarked on a 
massive half year and annual asset verification project for the period under review. Lost and stolen 
assets were retired from the system in the period in which the loss occurred or over to the correct 

accounting period. 

The SASSA's assets as per the General Ledger and the Fixed Asset Register at carrying value 
inclusive of intangible assets: 

Opening Balances as at Additions and Disposals Depreciation and Total Value 
carrying value transfer in Amortisation 

R 636 942 570 R 264 498 675 R 14 054 609 R 106 790 849 R 780 595 787 

7. RECONSTRUCTION OF BURNT BENEFICIARY FILES IN KZN 
(METROFILE)

As reported in the previous financial year, beneficiary files were destroyed by fire in the month of 
October 2013 at the KwaZulu-Natal region. At the time the files were burnt they were housed at the 
outsourced storage facility owned by a service provider (Metrofile). SASSA embarked on a project to 
reconstruct all the files that were destroyed following an audit and reconciliation that were performed 
using the Management Information System (MIS) and SOCPEN data which confirmed that about 1.2 
million files were destroyed. The following categories of files were excluded for reconstruction: 

• Grant Type files that exist in the records management centre
• Electronic file copies that exist
• Inactive beneficiary records on SOCPEN system
• Beneficiaries transferred to other regions
• Disability grant reviews applications
• Social Relief of Distress files

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 



This reduced the number of active files to be reconstructed to a total of 321,862 of which 82,430 were 

reconstructed by financial year-end. 

8. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

SASSA is currently using a manual system for collating and compiling performance reports. The 

branch Strategy and Business Development is responsible for the production of SASSA's quarterly 

performance reports that are submitted to the Minister. 

Performance information for the year ended 31 March 2015 was compiled through consolidating 

information contained in a variety of reports produced on a quarterly basis by different branches. The 

quarterly performance reports are reviewed, analysed and quality assured before the content can be 

used for compiling SASSA's report. Verification of achievements is done with individual branch 

managers. 

9. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

None. 

10. EXEMPTIONS RECEIVED FROM THE NATIONAL TREASURY

None. 

11. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

In the matter relating to Social Grants Payment Tender, the Constitutional Court has ruled in favour of 

AIIPay by upholding the appeal against the Supreme Court of Appeal's judgment; and thus declaring 

the award of the tender to the Cash Paymaster Services (CPS) constitutionally invalid. However, the 

Constitutional Court did not set aside the award of the tender to CPS; but ordered that the tender 

process be re-run, and SASSA to take a decision (upon finalization of the new tender process) on 

whether to award the new tender. The Constitutional Court had suspended the declaration of invalidity 

of the award of the tender to CPS in order to afford SASSA the opportunity to re-run the new tender 

process and make a determination thereof. This means that the contractual obligations emanating 

from the award of the tender to CPS will remain in force until such time that SASSA decides whether 

or not to award the new tender. The matter is finalized and no capital liability has emanated from the 

outcome thereof. Currently SASSA is initiating a new process to re-advertise this bid in accordance 
with Constitutional Court's ruling 

12. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

A payable amounting to R316 million was raised in the financial year 2013/2014, although the creditor 

was paid during 2014/2015 subject to independent verification of the payment. The payment was for 
the enrolment of additional social grant beneficiaries, children and procurators. A company was 

appointed to review this payment. The report will be finalized during the first quarter of 2015/2016. 

Furthermore, Corruption Watch has instituted legal action against SASSA and has requested the 

Court to review and set aside the decision of the Chief Executive Officer of SASSA to approve the 

said payment. 

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 



13. APPROVAL

The Annual Financial 
. 

page 80 to 111 ha 
Authority 

statements set out on 

7 

ve been approved by the A . 

c / 

ccounting 

I, ; /-,, .

(ft/ -

DR W MAGASELA 
ACTING CHIEF E 

ACCOUNTING A�i�iTIVE OFFICER

DATE : 28 JULY 2015 
RITY 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
· · · · · ·

·
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

· · · · · ·
·
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·

·
· · · · · · · · · · · ·

· · · · · · ·

SASSA has a legal duty to pay your grant into the

SAS SA branded card's account. Any replacement

of a SASSA branded card can only be done at a

legitimate SASSA office. Using any other product

or service may expose your SASSA card to 

unnecessary risks. Look after your PIN and don't

share it with anyone. 

sassa
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SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA )ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 



I 



• 

2. REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL 
SECURITY AGENCY 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the South African Social Security Agency set out on
pages 80 to 111, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015,
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and
reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance for the year then ended,
as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Accounting authority's responsibility for the for the financial statements 

2. The accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)(PFMA) and the South African Social
Security Agency Act, 2004 (Act No.9 of 2004), and for such internal control as the accounting
authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion .
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Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the South African Social Security Agency as at 31 March 2015 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP
and the requirements of the Pubic Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA).

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

7. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in
the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of
my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to
gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion
or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives 

8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

• Programme 1: Administration on pages 26 to 37

• Programme 2: Benefit Administration on pages 38 to 43

9. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and
reliability.

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was
presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether
the reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests
to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable,
time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's Framework for managing
programme performance information (FMPPI).

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was
valid, accurate and complete.

12. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the following programmes:

• Programme 1: Administration

• Programme 2: Benefit Administration

Additional matter 

13. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matters:
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Achievement of planned targets 

14. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 26 to 43 for information on the achievement of
the planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements 

15. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the
reported performance information for Programme 1: Administration. As management
subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not identify any material findings on the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.

Compliance with legislation 

16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable
legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My
findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual Financial Statements 

17. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not supported by full and proper records as
required by section 55(1 )(a)(b) of the PFMA for operating leases. Material misstatement of
operating leases identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements was
subsequently corrected resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit
opinion.

Irregular and Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

18. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as required
by section 51 ( 1 )(b )(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

19. The accounting authority did not take effective and appropriate disciplinary steps against officials
who incurred and/or permitted irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as
required by section 51 (1 )(e)(iii) of the Public Finance Management Act.

Expenditure management 

20. The controls to ensure proper management of expenditure to a service provider for additional
work performed for re-registration of additional beneficiaries was not implemented, as required
by section 51 (1 )(c) of the Public Finance Management Act.

Internal Audit 

21. Internal audit did not evaluate the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information,
as required by Treasury Regulation 27.2.10(b).

Internal control 

22. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, report on
predetermined objectives and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited
to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with
legislation included in this report .
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Leadership 

23. The accounting authority did not establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable
and support understanding of internal control activities to ensure complete and accurate financial
reporting of irregular expenditure and leases.

24. The accounting authority did not execute adequate review and oversight to ensure compliance to
applicable legislation and regulations and related controls regarding procurement and irregular
expenditure.

Financial and performance management 

25. Proper record keeping and review processes were not implemented in a timely manner by
management to ensure complete, relevant and accurate financial reporting on irregular
expenditure and leases. Furthermore record keeping and review processes were not
implemented in a timely manner to ensure compliance with applicable legislation and regulations
and related controls regarding procurement and irregular expenditure.

Governance 

26. Internal Audit did not perform a review on the reliability and integrity of financial information.

Investigations 

27. Investigations were conducted by the fraud management and compliance unit of SASSA and the
special investigation unit on request of the Agency. The investigations were initiated based on:

• Non-compliance to the supply chain management policy and procedures resulting in possible
fraudulent actions and possible irregular and fruitless expenditure.

28. National Treasury investigated two cases relating to the awarding of two bids. For one
investigation the report has been released to the Minister for further action the other one is still
under investigation. The impact on the financial disclosures is still unknown.

29. A civil society organisation performed an investigation on the payment made by SASSA to a
service provider amounting to R.317 million. Based on the result of the investigation, the
organisation has approached the court to review and set aside the decision to pay R317 million
to the service provider. The investigation and court action was initiated based on public interest
nature of the matter. The matter is still in court.

�- 1,_LJdf_ 
Pretoria T
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30 July 2015 
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Auditing to build public confidence 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 
Figures in Rand Note(s) 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Inventories 3 

Receivables from exchange transactions 4 

Prepayments 5 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 7 

Intangible assets 8 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 9 

Operating lease liability 10 

Payables from exchange transactions 11 

Provisions 12 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 9 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Accumulated surplus 

2015 

23,369,723 

6,490,224 

12,657,719 

1,163,740,459 

1,206,258,125 

729,305,990 

51,289,799 

780,595,789 

1,986,853,914 

273,983 

36,042,337 

299,291,519 

284,208,945 

619,816,784 

198,444 

620,015,228 

1,366,838,686 
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2014 

16,465,708 

3,990,658 

7,823,385 

1,633,341,775 

1,661,621,526 

574,797,665 

62,144,905 

636,942,570 

2,298,564,096 

822,802 

39,835,621 

822,643,724 

294,064,540 

1,157,366,687 

472,427 

1,157,839,114 

1,140,724,982 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Statement of Financial Performance 
Figures in Rand 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Finance income 

Government grants 

Total revenue 

Expenditure 

Personnel costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Finance costs 

Provision for Impairment 

Sponsorships, Gifts and Donations 

Repairs and maintenance 

Administrative expenses 

Social assistance service fee 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus 

Loss on disposal of assets 

Surplus for the year 

Note(s) 2015 

13 3,903,676 
16 320,508 
14 6,517,589,000 

6,521,813,184 

17 2,491,206,801 
7&8 106,791,551 
18 463,082 
4 446,487 
34 

157,491,441 
19 1,573,707,370 
20 1,957,587,025 

6,287,693,757 

15 234,119,427 

(8,005,725) 

226,113,702 
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2014 

4,441,542 

236,408 

6,311,048,000 

6,315,725,950 

2,212,445,694 

76,783,788 

587,645 

853,182 

8,000,000 

120,138,257 

1,630,511,444 

2,206,034,666 

6,255,354,676 

60,371,274 

(9,646,557) 

50,724,717 



South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Figures in Rand 

Balance at 01 April 2013 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

Total changes 

Balance at 01 April 2014 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

Total changes 

Balance at 31 March 2015 

Accumulated 
surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

1,090,000,265 

50,724,717 

50,724,717 

1,140,724,984 

226,113,702 

226,113,702 

1,366,838,686 
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Total net 
assets 

1,090,000,265 

50,724,717 

50,724,717 

1,140,724,984 

226,113,702 

226,113,702 

1,366,838,686 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Cash Flow Statement 
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Cash receipts 6,518,546,623 6,315,948,588 

Payments 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees :6,728,732,056) :6.080,482,907) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 23 (210,185,433) 235,465,681 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (263,815,474) (241,976,079) 

Purchase of intangible assets 8 (683,204) (4,251,306) 

Proceeds from sale of assets 6,048,171 645,930 

Interest Income 16 320,508 236,408 

Net cash flows from investing activities (258,129,999) (245,345,047) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance lease payments (822,802) (2,939,578) 

Finance costs 18 (463,082) (587,645) 

Net cash flows from financing activities (1,285,884) (3,527,223) 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (469,601,316) (13,406,589) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,633,341,775 1,646,748,364 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 1,163,740,459 1,633,341,775 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Annual Financia.1 Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board in 
accordance with Section 89(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand and 
rounded to the nearest rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, Which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year. unless stated otherwise. 

Comparative information 

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative 
amounts are restated. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively 
as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in 
accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly. 

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

Receivables 

The agency assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the agency's management makes judgements as to whether there is 
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. 

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and 
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the 
portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence 
period. 

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that ii is impaired. The 
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted al the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 

Provisions 

Provisions are raised and management determined estimates are based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 12. Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is 
material. 

Useful lives and residual values 

The agency re-assesses the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on an annual basis. In re
assessing the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment management considers the condition and use 
of the individual assets, to determine the remaining period over which the asset can and will be used. 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the agency; 

and 
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the agency is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, 
plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment Which can only be used in connection with an item of 
property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses except for assets 
which is carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value and is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss . 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 
Land 
Buildings 
Finance lease assets 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
IT equipment 
Communication equipment 

Expected useful life 
Indefinite 
20 - 50 years 
lesser of the useful life or the lease agreement term 
2 - 15 years 
5- 15 years
4 - 10 years
5 - 15 years
3 - 10 years
2 - 15 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the agency to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 
• is capable of being separated or divided from an agency and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 

either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability, regardless of whether the agency intends 
to do so; or

• arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding
rights granted by statute) regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the agency or
from other rights and obligation. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 

flow to the agency; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

The agency assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the 
useful life of the asset. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured 
at its fair value as at that date. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1.3 Intangible assets (continued) 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 
• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it. 
• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the 

asset.
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment 
losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not 
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item 
Computer software, internally generated 
Computer software, other 

1.4 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Useful life 
3 - 10 years 
3 - 10 years 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the agency becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

The agency classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 

Inter-departmental claims payable or receivable represent amounts owing in respect of employee transfers between 
government departments. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Receivables are classified as receivables and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
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South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1.4 Financial instruments (continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents . classification and subsequent measurement 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits after payments processed but not cleared by the 
bank, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are intially and subsequently recorded at fair value and are classified as 
receivables. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings - classification and subsequent measurement 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Any 
difference. between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over 
the term of the borrowings in accordance with the agency's accounting policy for borrowing costs. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease . 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of 
the liability. 

Any contingent rent is expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term . The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their 
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories shall be measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 
• distribution through a non-exchange transaction; or
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

Current replacement cost is the cost the agency incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects shall be assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the agency. 
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1.7 Employee benefits 

Short-tenm employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the 
service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make 
such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the agency's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

1.8 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
• the agency has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and 
• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected 
to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditures required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the agency 
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does 
not exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions shall not be recognised for deficits from future operating activities. 

If the agency has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 
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1.8 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an agency: 
• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
the principal locations affected; 
the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
terminated; 
the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
when the plan will be implemented; and 

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
• not associated with the ongoing activities of the agency 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 25. 

1.9 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the agency receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm's length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Interest  

Revenue arising from the use by others of  agency assets yielding interest is  recognised when: 
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the agency; 

and 
the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.10 Revenue from non�xchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the agency receives value from another agency without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Recognition and measurement 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions (including government grants) is recognised to the extent that the asset received 
qualifies for recognition, and there is no corresponding liability due to conditions associated with the transfer. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY(SASSA) ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 

•



• 

South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Accounting Policies 

1.10 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Government grants 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transactions other than services rendered, that meet the definition of an asset is 
recognised as an asset when: 

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the agency; 
and 

• the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

The agency assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the basis 
of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of funds. 
Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the agency. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be available 
for qualifying agencies in accordance with an agreed program may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of the flow. 
Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available. 

Conditions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there is no 
condition on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier. 

1.11 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are capitalised to the cost of acquisition or construction of a qualifying c1sset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they relate. 

1.12 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.13 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the 
year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.14 Budget information 

The financial statements and budget are not presented on the same basis as the financial statements are prepared on accrual 
basis and the budget on a cash basis of accounting. A reconciliation between the surplus/(deficit) for the period as per 
statement of financial performance and budgeted surplus/(deficit) is included in the statement of comparison of budget and 
actual amounts. 

1.15 Related parties 

The agency operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the agency. The agency regards all individuals from the level of Chief Executive Officer and Executive Managers as 
key management per the definition of the financial reporting standard . 
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1.15 Related parties (continued) 

Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or be influenced by key management individuals, in their dealings with the agency. 

Related party disclosures for transactions between government entities that took place on terms and conditions that are 
considered 'at arms-length' and 'in the ordinary course of business' are not disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 20 - 'Related 
Party Disclosures'. 

········
·
··········

·············
·············

··········

.................•......................
.

. 
�,' I� 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

. 
__ .,_ r-._ .. W".::"I 

.... � 

A leader in the delivery of social secur ·ty services. 

your grant into the
SAS SA has a legal d�ty

�c���t. Any replacement
SAS SA branded card s a 

d can only be done at a
of a SASSA brande� car 

Using any other product

legitimate SASSA o ,ce. 
ur SASSA card to 

or service m�Y expos; a��r your PIN and don't
unnecessary nsks. Loo 

share it with anyone. 

SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITYAGENCY(SASSA)ANNUAL REPORT 201412015 

sassa
SOUTH AFRICAN S0C1Al SECURITY AGENCY 

•



• • 

South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards issued but not yet effective 

2015 2014 

The Accounting Standards Board has issued the following additional standards of GRAP for which effective dates have not 
yet been gazetted by the Minister of Finance: 

GRAP 20: Related parties 

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting agency's annual financial statements contain the disclosures 
necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the 
existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

An agency that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred 
to as the reporting agency) shall apply this standard in: 

• identifying related party relationships and transactions;
• identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an agency and its related parties;
• identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
• determining the disclosures to be made about those items.

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including 
commitments, in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting agency in accordance with the 
Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to individual annual 
financial statements. 

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related 
parties may affect users' assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting agency and its ability to 
deliver agreed services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the agency. This disclosure also 
ensures that the reporting agency is transparent about its dealings with related parties. 

The standard states that a related party is a person or an agency with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, 
or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an agency that is subject to common control, or joint 
control. 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the 
reporting agency and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the agency, but may result in more disclosure than 
is currently provided in the annual financial statements. 

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public 
sector agency. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and 
measurement of liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and 
disclosure, transitional provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister set the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP108: Statutory Receivables 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of statutory receivables. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional 
provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister set the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity·s annual financial statements. 

DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards of GRAP 

The objective of this Directive is to permit an agency to change its measurement bases following the initial adoption of 
Standards of GRAP. The change is based on the principles in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. This Directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

In applying paragraph 13(b) of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, 
this Directive allows an agency, that has initially adopted the fair value model for investment property or the revaluation 
model for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets or heritage assets, to change its accounting policy on a once-off 
basis to the cost model when the agency elects to change its accounting policy following the initial adoption of these 
Standards of GRAP. The once-off change will be allowed when the agency made an inappropriate accounting policy choice 
on the initial adoption of the Standards of GRAP. 

Subsequent to the application of this Directive, an agency will be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods 
subject to it meeting the requirements in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2016. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 
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3. Inventories

Stationery and consumables 
Postage/franking machine 

4. Receivables from exchange transactions

Staff debtors 
Other debtors 
Inter-departmental claims 

Receivables pledged as security 

Receivables were not pledged as security for any financial liability. 

Credit quality of receivables 

2015 

19,928,662 
3,441,061 

23,369,723 

1,774,462 
1,049,565 
3,666,197 

6,490,224 

2014 

12,059,518 
4,406,190 

16,465,708 

2,129,207 
846,924 

1,014,527 

3,990,658 

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
historical information about counterparty default rates. 

Fair value of receivables 

The fair value of receivables approximates the carrying amount due to their short term nature. 

Carrying value 
Provision for doubtful 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables 

Opening balance 
Provision for impairment 
Amounts written off as uncollectible 
Unused amounts reversed 

5. Prepayments

Prepaid annual consulting, support and subscription fees 
Opening balance 
Amount realised as an expense 
Increased for the period 

12,069,175 
(5,578,951) 

6,490,224 

5,235,424 
446,487 

(102,960) 

5,578,951 

7,823,385 
(76,838,249) 
81,672,583 

12,657,719 
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6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Petty cash 
Bank balances 

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand 

2015 

90,000 
1,163,650,459 

1,163,740,459 

2014 

80,000 
1,633,261,775 

1,633,341,775 

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can 
be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates. 

The vast majority of the agency's funds are not held within a commercial bank, therefore the agency is not exposed to credit 
risk. 
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7. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014 

Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value 
depreciation depreciation 

and and 
accumulated accumulated 
impairment impainnent 

Land 519,500 519,500 3,210,950 3,210,950 
Buildings 111,446,291 (12,710,473) 98,735,818 99,742,026 (10,373,225) 89,368,801 
Work in progress 14,996,243 14,996,243 
Furniture and fixtures 173,500,282 (57,586,953) 115,913,329 156,913,251 (49,928,039) 106,985,212 
Motor vehicles 311,564,045 (78,417,781) 233,146,264 217,761,448 (51,476,509) 166,284,939 
Office equipment 12,551,472 (6,087,862) 6,463,610 12,185,232 (5,441,602) 6,743,630 
IT equipment 347,455,276 (124,163,677) 223,291,599 290,814,750 (121,880,891) 168,933,859 
Finance lease assets 782,612 (463,622) 318,990 3,549,700 (2,582,933) 966,767 
Machinery and equipment 53,749,240 (23,020,058) 30,729,182 45,050,830 (19,305,621) 25,745,209 
Communication equipment 17,074,534 (11,883,079) 5,191,455 16,846,784 (10,288,486) 6,558,298 

Total 1,043,639,495 (314,333,505) 729,305,990 846,074,971 (271,277,306) 574,797,665 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 

Opening Additions Disposals Re- Depreciation Carrying value 
balance classifications 

Land 3,210,950 (2,691,450) 519,500 
Buildings 89.368,801 11,704,264 (2,337,248) 98,735,817 
Work in progress 14,996,243 14,996,243 
Furniture and fixtures 106,985,212 23,119,020 (3,135,492) (5,735) (11,049,676) 115,913,329 
Motor vehicles 166,284,939 107,367,494 (3,996,870) (30,715) (36,478,584) 233,146,264 
Office equipment 6,743,630 1,225,875 (140,507) (131,487) (1,233,901) 6,463,610 
IT equipment 168,933,859 94,942,713 (3,539,466) 154,633 (37,200,140) 223,291,599 
Finance lease assets 966,767 (1,744) (49,695) (596,338) 318,990 
Machinery and equipment 25,745,209 10,038,702 (279,410) 16,552 (4,791,871) 30,729,182 
Communication equipment 6,558,298 421,160 (92,070) 46,447 (1,742,380) 5,191,455 

574,797,665 263,815,471 (13,877,009) (95,430,138) 729,305,989 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014 

Opening Additions Disposals Re- Depreciation Carrying value 
balance classifications 

Land 2,691,450 519,500 3,210,950 
Buildings 89,641,872 1,957,081 (43,802) (2,186,350) 89,368,801 
Furniture and fixtures 93,798,585 26,930,585 (3,666,818) (44,756) (10,032,384) 106,985,212 
Motor vehicles 32,895,998 145,173,388 (1,869,707) 54,070 (9,968.810) 166,284,939 
Office equipment 7,424,056 1,153,135 (668,303) 58,924 (1,224,182) 6,743,630 
IT equipment 152,308,642 54,118,644 (3,372,720) (404,267) (33,716,440) 168,933,859 
Finance lease assets 3,156,692 485,735 (208,977) (2,466,683) 966,767 
Machinery and equipment 19,567,639 10,685,210 (332,406) 35,876 (4,211,110) 25,745,209 
Communication equipment 6,934,460 1,438,535 (130,485) (4,136) (1,680,076) 6,558,298 

408,419,394 242,461,813 (10,293,218) (304,289) (65,486,035) 574,797,665 

Property, plant and equipment to the value of R304,289 for the year ended 2014 were reclassified as intangible assets (see 
note 8). 
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7. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 

Finance lease assets 

These assets serve as security for the lease obligation under Note 9. 

Reclassification of categories 

2015 2014 

318,990 966,767 

Certain categories of Property, plant and equipment have been reclassified to enhance fair presentation, none of the 
reclassifications are considered material to warrant individual disclosure of the amounts concerned. 

8. Intangible assets 

2015 2014 

Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation amortisation 

and and 
accumulated accumulated 
impairment impairment 

Computer software 112,193,207 (60,903,408) 51,289,799 112,300,467 (50,155,562) 62,144,905 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015 

Opening Additions Disposals Amortisation Carrying value 
balance 

Computer software 62,144,905 683,204 (177,600) (11,360,711) 51,289,798 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014 

Opening Additions Re Amortisation Carrying value 
balance classification 

Computer software 68,887,064 4,251,306 304,289 (11,297,754) 62,144,905 
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9. Finance lease obligation 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
• in second to fifth year inclusive 

less: future finance charges 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Present value of minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 

Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

2015 2014 

574,272 1,285,530 
268,457 842,728 

842,729 2,128,258 
(370,302) (833,029) 

472,427 1,295,229 

273,983 822,802 
198,444 472,427 

472,427 1,295,229 

198,444 472,427 
273,983 822,802 

472,427 1,295,229 

The average lease term is between 2-5 years and the average effective borrowing rate is linked to the prime rate as detennined 
by the South African Reserve Bank. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All the leases have fixed repayment terms. No 
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent. Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to 
the leased asset. 

The agency did not default on any interest or capital portions on any of the finance leases. 

None of the terms attached to the finance leases were renegotiated in the period under review. 

The agency's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 7. 

10. Operating lease liability

Contractual payments 
Straight line basis expense 

158,057,627 
194,099,964 

36,042,337 

214,046,985 
253,882,606 

39,835,621 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments have been recognised as an operating lease liabilty. 
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11. Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables 
Inter-departmental claims 
Payroll - Third-party 
Accrued service bonus 
Accrued expenses 

Fair value of trade and other payables 

Trade payables 
Inter-departmental claims 
Payroll - Third-party 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued service bonus 

2015 

67,431,170 
1,475,370 
4,187,799 

74,515,588 
151,681,592 

299,291,519 

67,431,170 
1,475,370 
4,187,799 

151,681,592 
74,515,588 

299,291,519 

The fair value of payables approximate the carrying amount due to their short term nature. 

12. Provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015 

Provision for legal fees 
Provisions for shared services and other third-party 
Provision for leave pay 
Provision for performance bonus 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014 

Provisions for shared services and legal fees 
Provision for leave pay 
Provision for performance bonus 

Opening 
Balance 
3,480,745 

34,489,521 
222,987,069 

33,107,205 

294,064,540 

Opening 
Balance 
46,214,853 

257,624,235 
30,083,735 

333,922,823 

Additions Utilised during 
the year 
(3,480,745) 

11,745,579 (22,253,521} 
239,699,406 (239,232,061) 

32,329,476 (28,663,729} 

283,774,461 (293,630,056) 

Additions Utilised during 
the year 

10,572,792 (18,817,379} 
210,610,836 (245,248,002) 

28,586,232 (25,562,762} 

249,769,860 (289,628,143) 

2014 

498,849,334 
88,567 

800,442 
65,051,974 

257,853,407 

822,643,724 

498,849,334 
88,567 

800,442 
257,853,407 

65,051,974 

822,643,724 

Total 

23,981,579 
223,454,414 

36,772,952 

284,208,945 

Total 

37,970,266 
222,987,069 

33,107,205 

294,064,540 

The provision for performance bonus represents the estimated liability in respect of performance bonus to be paid out. 

The provision for leave pay includes both capped and uncapped leave entitlement to employees. The agency policy rate used 
in the calculation for the provision for leave pay is the same for both capped and uncapped entitled leave. 

The provision for shared services and other third-party represents shared services and other third-party incurred by the agency 
still outstanding at year end. 
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13. Revenue from exchange transactions

Tender documentation, waste papers and others 
Commissions received 
Rental income - Parking 
Recovery of bad debts written off 

14. Government grants 

Government grant 

2015 

464,749 
340,243 
329,536 

2.769, 148 

3,903,676 

6,517,589,000 

2014 

408,529 
357,966 
325,772 

3,349,275 

4,441,542 

6,311,048,000 

No amount of government grant received during the year was conditional, resulting in the full amount received being 
recognised as revenue. 

15. Operating surplus

Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following material items: 

Operating lease charges 
Buildings 
Office equipment 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Motor vehicles expenses 
Consulting and professional fees 
Amortisation on intangible assets 
Travel - local 
Social assistance service fees 
Telephone and fax 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Computer expenses 
Personnel costs 
Security 

16. Interest revenue

Bank interest received 
Interest on other receivables 

180,646,120 
13,453,844 

194,099,964 

8,005,725 
5,708,313 

104,701,666 
11,360,711 

122,609,555 
1,957,587,025 

34,950,897 
95,430,138 

298,486,441 
2,491,206,801 

165,528,762 

61,257 
259,251 

320,508 
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242,944,565 
10,938,041 

253,882,606 

9,646,557 
1,221,696 

69,158,873 
11,297,754 

131,443,361 
2,206,034,666 

34,273,711 
65,486,034 

256,160,579 
2,212,445,694 

152,971,298 

9,716 
226,692 

236,408 
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17. Personnel costs

Basic 
Service and performance bonuses 
Medical aid - company contributions 
Bursaries 
Bargain council 
Defined contribution plans 
Overtime payments 
Housing benefits and allowances 
Serviced based remuneration 
Circumstantial compensation 
Capital remuneration 
Non pensionable allowance 

18. Finance costs

Finance charge incurred on finance leases 

19. Administrative expenses

Advertising 
Auditors remuneration 
Bank charges 
Cleaning 
Computer expenses 
Consulting and professional fees 
Consumables 
Entertainment 
Medical expenses 
Motor vehicle expenses 
Postage and courier 
Printing and stationery 
Security 
Cellphone, telephone and fax expenses 
Transport and freight 
Travel - local 
Travel - overseas 
Other administrative expenses 
Assets expensed 
Utilities - Municipal services 
Uniforms 
Communication licences 
Resettlement cost 
Health and wellness expenses 
Rentals 
Venue expenses 
Lease rentals on operating lease 

20. Social assistance service fee 

Social assistance service fee 

2015 

1,753,611,644 
179,941,336 
129,633,007 

6,065,216 
310,285 

211,591,343 
19,705,563 
74,678,278 

1,599,805 
6,047,637 

458,427 
107,564,258 

2,491,206,799 

463,082 

68,155,417 
17.460,550 
1.408,452 

75,073,192 
298,486,441 
104,701,666 

9,636,456 
20,331,431 
87,601,860 
5,708,313 

10,293,606 
63,254,657 

165,528,762 
46,448,754 
23,676,214 

122,609,555 
1,202,704 

21,361,541 
2,175,900 

40,750,293 
5,761,100 
5,625,021 

10,303,096 
20,245,344 
92,207,483 
59,599,600 

194,099,964 

1,573,707,372 

1,957,587,025 

Fees paid to the service provider for cash handling and payment of social assistance to beneficiaries. 
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2014 

1,538,546,440 
155,978,629 
126,169,636 

3,914,818 
285,298 

192,861,045 
18,581,774 
72,847,639 

1,994,736 
5,883,207 

4,349 
95,378,123 

2,212,445,694 

587,645 

95,880,854 
19,378,319 

1,082,555 
63,481,883 

256,160,579 
69,158,873 
10,077,130 
20,945,500 
91,782,994 

1,221,696 
54,340,419 
67,487,560 

152,971,298 
44,018,564 
18,618,142 

131,443,361 
2,155,215 
2,104,604 
1,643,612 

35,088,634 
6,390,423 

19,383,331 
7,506,001 

18,504,125 
129,220,911 

56,582,255 
253,882,606 

1,630,511,444 

2,206,034,666 
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21. Taxation 

No provision has been made for 2015 tax as the Agency is exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1 )(cA)(i)of the Tax 
Act, 1962. 

22. Auditors' remuneration 

Fees for audit services rendered 

23. Cash (used in) generated from operations 

Surplus 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss on disposal of assets 
Finance costs - Finance leases 
Interest income 
Provision for impairment 
Movements in operating lease 
Movements in provisions 
Other non-cash items 
Changes in working capital: 
Inventories 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Prepayments 
Payables from exchange transactions 

24. Commitments

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 
- later than five years 

17,460,550 

226,113,702 

106,791,551 
8,005,725 

463,082 
(320,508) 
446,487 

(3,793,284) 
(9,855,595) 

(446,468) 

(6,904,015) 
(2,499,568) 
(4,834,334) 

(523,352,208) 

(210,185,433) 

184,018,800 
147,921,852 

242,574 

332,183,226 

19,378,319 

50,724,717 

76,783,788 
9,646,557 

587,645 
(236,408) 
853,182 

(2,527,067) 
(39,858,283) 

(852,445) 

(1,700,246) 
1,312,228 
9,128,420 

131,603,593 

235,465,681 

134,796,024 
189,641,440 

324,437,464 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the agency for certain of its office properties and equipment. Leases 
are negotiated for periods ranging from 12 months to 120 months. The leases escalate on average between 5% and 10%. The 
operating lease liability at the end of the period is R36,042,338 (2014: R39,835,622). 

The agency has capital commitments of R11,860,962 (2014: R81,656,360) for the forthcoming year ,other commitments 
relating to orders for which no goods or services have been received of R372,271,443 (2014: R526,211,055). 

The bid committee awarded work to the value of R126,053,072 during March 2015, no contracts had been entered into and no 
orders had been issued as at 31 March 2015. 
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25. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities 
Choice Technologies (Pty) Ltd 
SITA 10,035,264 

36,333,949 
12,701,652 
34,972.419 

877,173 

SIU 
Various claims 8,863,815 
Upgrade of salary levels 9 and 11 to levels 10 and 12 respectively (Resolution 3 
of 2009) - Case no: PSCBC 88-13/14 

The reason for these contingent liabilities are as follows: 
• Choice Technologies (Pty) Ltd

94,043,284 9,740,988 

Claim for capital amount resulting from the terms of the contract (IT services) between SASSA and Choice in respect 
of unpaid services. The claimant failed to apper in court on the day and the matter was removed from the roll,
thererfore the claim cannot be entertained any further.

• SITA

From 2006 - 2010 SASSA shared network connectivity with Department of Social Development (DSD) for offices in 
Eastern Cape, Limpopo, North West and Kwazulu. From February 2010 SASSA moved away from shared services
to its own Virtual Private Network (VPN). SASSA informed SITA about this movement from the shared network
costs. SITA stopped billing SASSA for those shared network services in all regions (Eastern Cape, Limpopo and 
North West) except for Kwazulu Natal. This is the basis of SASSA dispute that SITA never provided services to all
other regions including Kwazulu Natal for shared network costs.

SIU 

SASSA entered into a service level agreement with SIU from 01 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 and concurrently there 
were proclamations issued and extended. The latest proclamation (R27 of 2010) was issued by the Presidency on 
08 June 2010 without an end date. No further proclamation was issued beyond this; however, on 22 July 2014 "the 
Presidency issued a status report update on the Special lnvestigatation Unit proclamations wherin it was pointed out 
that there had been some investigative work still undertaken in relation to proclamation R27 of 2010. SASSA is not 
able to verify services or the amount in relation to this proclamation, hence the claim is regarded cotingent pending 
the finalisation of the investigation. 

Various Claims 
Claims by SASSA employees for allegedly wrongful and unlawful suspensions - R4,500,000 as at 31 March 2015. 
Claim for payment of employment benefits, allowances and compensation award R518,509 as at 31 March 2015. 
Motor vehicle accident claims from third parties is R225, 145 (2014) and R118,262 (2015), the liability has not been 
determined. 
K Naiker - Application for reviewing of the arbitration award launched by SASSA amounting to R391,360 in 2014 
financial year, this case was dismissed in the 2015 financial year. 
Mpisi Trading - Claim for remuneration stemming the alleged occupational rent amount to R882,428 for 2014. 
Defamation of Character claims against SASSA; its employees and Stemele amounting to R4,350,000 (2014) and 
R4,550,000 (2015). 
Truden (Pty) Ltd - Claim for payment of a capital amount stemming from a contract R3,014,882 for 2014 and 2015 
financial years. 

• Upgrade of salary levels
In 2012 a resolution was taken to upgrade level 9 and 11 to level 10 and 12 respectively. Implementation of upgrade
of salary levels from level 9 and 11 to level 10 and 12 respectively for phase 2 has been placed on hold pending the
determination from the Minister of Public Service and Administration.
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25. Contingencies (continued)
• Social Grants Payment Tender

2015 2014 

The Constitutional Court has ruled in favour of Allpay by upholding the appeal against the Supreme Court of 
Appears judgment; and thus declaring the award of the tender to the Cash Paymaster Services (CPS) 
constitutionally invalid. However, the Constitutional Court did not set aside the award of the tender to CPS; but 
ordered that the tender process be re-run, and SASSA to take a decision (upon finalisation of the new tender) on 
whether to award the new tender. The Constitutional Court had suspended the declaration of invalidity of the award 
of the tender to CPS in order to afford SASSA an opportunity to re-run the new tender process and make a 
determination thereon. This means that the contractual obligations emanating from the award of the tender to CPS 
will remain in force until such time that SASSA decides whether or not to award the new tender. The matter is 
finalised and no capital liability has emanated from the outcome thereof. SASSA initiated a new process to re
advertise this bid in accordance with the constitutional court ruling. The new bid has been closed and SASSA is in
the process of evaluating it.

26. Related parties 

Due to the agency being a National Public Agency, all other entities within the national sphere of government are deemed to be 
related parties. Most notably, the agency is related to the Department of Social Development, the Minister being the agency's 
Executive Authority. 
The agency receives from, and is dependent on the Department of Social Development for funding, and this has been 
disclosed as grant revenue received in note 14. In accordance with IPSAS 20: Related Parties, disclosure of related party 
transactions and balances are only required where these took place on terms that are not usual in the sector or generally 
available to the broader public. 
Inter-departmental claims are generally based on arms length transactions. 
Refer to note 27 for key management emoluments. 
The agency has made provision for services received from other related parties as part of its general accruals and 
consequently considers these transactions to be at arms length. 

The agency holds nine bank accounts with first national bank on behalf of the department of social development These bank 
accounts are used as a facility to accept cash payments from debtors whereas cash payments cannot be made directly to the 
paymaster general account or South African Reserve Bank; which is the official Government banker. The transactions in these 
bank accounts are swept (transferred) on a daily basis to the paymaster general accounts with a two days turn around time. 
These amounts are disclosed in the annual financial statements of the Department of Social Development. 

The following funds also fall under the Executive Authority of the Department of Social Development: 
- State President Fund;
- Social Relief Fund;
- Refugee Fund; and
- Disaster Relief Fund.
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27. Key management emoluments 

Executive 

2015 

Emoluments Service bonus Car allowance Other benefits Total 
Ms V Petersen (CEO) 1,099,178 91,598 575,207 1,765,983 
Mr CA Appel (CFO-Resigned) 595,217 74,402 225,121 894,740 
Ms R Ramokgopa (Exe. Manager-Strategy) 866,628 72,219 80,000 237,630 1,256,477 
Mr TC Dubazama (Acting REM-LP) 448,152 52,226 30,000 97,599 627,977 
Mr 88 Maqetuka (REM-FS) 800,240 66,687 239,640 253,764 1,360,331 
Mr SP Yawa (REM-EC) 731,842 60,987 178,476 264,223 1,235,528 
Mr W Terblanche (REM-WC) 892,826 74,402 30,000 290,578 1,287,806 
Ms EZ Mvulane (REM-NW) 742,824 61,902 108,000 325,314 1,238,040 
Mr F Earl (Exe. Grants Benefits Transfers) 714,968 102,000 402,849 1,219,817 
Mr MM Mogane (REM-MP) 788,411 65,701 210,588 263,618 1,328,318 
Mr JC Makondo (Acting CIO) 391,097 51,000 143,711 585,808 
Ms ED Dunkerley (Exe. Grants Adminitration) 843,964 70,100 60,000 240,925 1,214,989 
Ms MT Sibanyoni (Exe. Manager-Corp. Services) 765,279 63,773 75,996 383,205 1,288,253 
Ms PS Bengu (REM-KZN) 947,612 78,968 66,000 275,297 1,367,877 
Ms K Lubelwana (REM-NC: Retired) 818.423 132,000 228,421 1,178,844 
Mr MT Matlou (REM-GP) 841,199 70,100 156,000 145,873 1,213,172 
Ms C Koster (Acting CIO) 310,529 163,098 473,627 
Mr T J Chauke (Acting CFO) 800,842 52,288 68,000 318,813 1,239,943 
Ms MM Mamabolo (Acting REM-LP) 397,250 60,000 127,756 585,006 

13,796,481 955,353 1,647,700 4,963,002 21,362,536 

2014 

Emoluments Service bonus Car allowance Other benefits Total 
Ms V Petersen (CEO) 1,012,330 82,063 144,000 390,187 1,628,580 
Mr CA Appel (CFO) - Seconded to DSD 844,679 70,390 309,208 1,224,277 
Ms Ramokgopa (Exe. Manager-Strategy) 819,895 68,325 80,000 224,839 1,193,059 
Ms PS Bengu (REM KZN) 821,802 68,568 66,000 231,645 1,188,015 
Mr BB Maqetuka (REM-FS) 757,087 63,091 239,640 206,157 1,265,975 
Mr SP Yawa (REM-EC) 692,377 57,698 178,476 245,429 1,173,980 
Mr W Terblanohe (REM-WC) 844,679 70,390 30,000 275,277 1,220,346 
Ms EZ Mvulane (REM-NW) 702.767 58,564 108,000 301,947 1,171,278 
Mr F Earl (Exe. Grants Benefits Transfers) 525,466 45,000 323,797 894,263 
Mr MM Mogane (REM-MP) 745,895 62,158 210,588 239,162 1,257,803 
Mr GT Rees (REM-GP) 882,206 133,915 30,000 274,571 1,320,692 
Ms ED Dunkerley (Exe. Grants Administration) 609,921 67,179 45,000 172,126 894,226 
Ms MT Sibanyoni (Exe. Manager-Corp. Services) 724,010 60,334 75,996 362,842 1,223,182 
Ms K Lubelwana (REM-NC) 844,679 70,390 12,000 291,489 1,218,558 
Mr MT Matlou (REM-LP) 795,837 66,320 156,000 139,580 1,157,737 
Ms C Koster (Acting CIO) 566,418 51,827 287,079 905,324 
Mr TP Mothusi (Acting CFO, June-Aug 2013) 129,810 11,000 58,319 199,129 
Ms LM Thovhakale (Acting CFO, Sep to 31 394,344 47,445 44,400 130,915 617,104 
March 2014) 

12,714,202 1,098,657 1,476,100 4,464,569 19,753,528 

Total key management emoluments 
Basic salary 13,799,481 12,714,202 
Service bonus 955,353 1,098,657 
Car allowance 1,647,700 1,476,100 
Other benefits 4,963,002 4,464,569 

Total 21,365,536 19,753,528 
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27. Key management emoluments (continued)

These emoluments have been included in Note 17 Personnel cost. 

2015 2014 

Mr. C.A. Appel was seconded to Department of Social Development from 01 April 2014 to 30 November 2014 and his 
remuneration is been claimed from Department of Social Development. 

Ms. C. Koster was appointed as an Acting CIO from 01 April 2014 to 30 September 2014 then Mr J.C. Makondo was appointed 
from 01 October 2014 to 31 March 2015. 

28. Risk management

Liquidity risk 

The agency's liquidity risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The agency manages liquidity risk 
through an ongoing review of future commitments. 

All the payable balances reflected at year end are payable within 30 days. 

Credit risk 

The agency does not sell any goods or charge money for any of its services. Debtors relate to employees that have loans with 
the agency. Management evaluates credit risk relating to debtors on an ongoing basis. 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits and cash equivalents. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 
Receivables: R6,490,224 ( 2014: R3,990,658) 

Foreign exchange risk 

The agency does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. The agency does not have any foreign account receivables, foreign 
accounts payables or derivative market instruments. 

Price risk 

Due to the nature and extent of the agency's activities, the agency is not exposed to price risks. 

29. Going concern 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. Refer to accounting authority 
report for details. The agency is established in terms of the South African Social Security Agency Act, No. 9 of 2004 and 
depends on grants from the Department of Social Development. 

30. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure- opening balance 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - Condoned 
Transferred to receivables for recovery 

4,025,911 
5,302,223 

(1,860,872) 
(382,103) 

7,085,159 

1,276,583 
3,152,767 

{119,027) 
{284,412) 

4,025,911 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred by various regional offices and head office which consists mainly of fines, late 
payment fees and cancellation fees. Details of all incidents are recorded in the agency's fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
register. 
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31. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 
Add: Irregular expenditure - current year 
Add: Irregular expenditure - mikondzo projects 
Less: Amounts condoned 

Possible Irregular 

Opening balance 
Lease payments 
Diagnostic Risk Assessment 
Forensic Investigations 
Re-registration of beneficiaries 

2015 2014 

53,145,130 16,274,015 
40,787,746 42,051,086 

28,065,682 
(858,138) (33,245,653) 

93,074,738 53,145,130 

200,979,324 
22,306,365 174,097,127 

2,520,000 14,295,110 
36,977,348 12,587,087 

316,447,361 

579,230,398 200,979,324 

Irregular expenditure relates mainly to non adherence to procurement and supply chain management policies by various 
regional offices and head office. Examples of non compliance include subsequent payments after the expiry of building lease 
contracts which takes time to be renewed. Matters of irregular expenditure have either been brought forward to the Labour 
Relations and or the Financial Misconduct board for various steps to be taken against the officials involved, and to attempt to 
recover the money where such expenditure was not subsequently condoned. Majority of cases of irregular expenditure were 
still under investigation as at 31 March 2015. 

There are cases of possible Irregular expenditure currently being considered by the agency and the Office of the Accountant
General which involves a review of all stages of the procurement process followed by SASSA to appoint service providers, 
some cases are still under internal investigation and some of these cases are currently before the courts which will confirm if 
there are any irregularities committed. 

The agency will request National Treasury to evaluate the additional Re-registration of beneficiaries process cost to determine 
whether the expenditure is irregular. This cost amounted to R316,447,361 as disclosed in possible irregular expenditure. 

Details of all incidents are recorded in the agency's irregular expenditure register. 

32. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

2015 

Receivables before impairment 
Impaired receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

2014 

Receivables before impairment 
Impaired Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables Total 
6,936,711 6,936,711 

(446,487) (446,487) 
1,163,740,459 1,163,740,459 

1,170,230,683 1,170,230,683 

Receivables Total 
4,843,840 4,843,840 

(853,182) (853,182) 
1,633,341,775 1,633,341,775 

1,637,332,433 1,637,332,433 
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32. Financial assets by category (continued)

Receivable's age analysis as at 31 March 2015 

Description 0-3 Months 
Staff debtors 537,711 
Inter-departmental claims 3,646,197 
Other debtors 1,048,629 

5,232,537 

33. Financial liabilities by category

3-6 Months
213,760

20,000 

233,760 

6-12 Months
526,651 

526,651 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

2015 

Payables 
Finance lease obligation 

2014 

Payables 
Finance lease obligation 

34. Statement of gifts, donations and sponsorships paid 

In cash 
Donation in cash 
In kind 
Mikondzo projects - Wheelchairs 

2015 

12 Months+ 
496,343 

936 

497,279 

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost 
299,291,519 

273,983 

299,565,502 

2014 

Total 
1,774,465 
3,666,197 
1,049,565 

6,490,227 

Total 

299,291,519 
273,983 

299,565,502 

Financial Total 
liabilities at 

amortised cost 
757,591,747 

822,802 

758,414,549 

757,591,747 
822,802 

758,414,549 

8,000,000 

25,303 

8,025,303 

2014 - SASSA donated R8000,000 in cash towards the school uniform cooperative project to National Development Agency 
during the financial year. 

2014 - SASSA donated wheelchairs to the value of R25,303 for Mikondzo Projects. 
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35. Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance

2015 

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance: 

Budget on cash basis Final approved Actual amounts 
budget on comparable 

basis 

Receipts 
Revenue from exchange transactions 3,903,676 
Finance income 320,508 
Government grants ;6,517,589,000) 6,517,589,000 
Payments 
Employee costs 2,602,586,940 :2,491,206,801) 
Finance costs (463,082) 
Repairs and maintenance 90,587,893 (157,491,441) 
Social assistance 1,979,097,471 :1,957,587,025) 
Administrative expenses 1,741,710,645 (1,573,707,370) 
Capital expenditure 103,606,051 

Net receipts/(payments) 341,357,465 

Reconciliation between budget and cash flow statement 

Operating Financing Investing 
Actual amount on comparable basis (341,214,891) (463,082) 320,508 
Basis difference 131,029,458 (822,802) (258,450,507) 

Actual amount in the cash flow statement (210,185,433) (1,285,884) (258,129,999) 

Repairs and Maintenance 

2014 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

3,903,676 
320,508 

111,380,139 
(463,082) 

(66,903,548) 
21,510,446 

168,003,275 
103,606,051 

341,357,465 

Total 
(341,357,465) 
(128,243,851) 

(469,601,316) 

Since 2012, the agency has been particularly focused on improving the conditions under which beneficiaries are served, as 
well as working conditions of employees, through a project that seeks to improve local offices. These improvements involve 
enhancing accessibility for disabled persons, and upgrading sanitation and customer facilities. This would ensure an 
environment conducive for the delivery of social services with dignity. The supposed overspending in Repairs and Maintenance 
for Local Office Improvement Project is funded from the retained surplus as approved by National Treasury and not from the 
Agency's baseline. The budget against Which this analysis is made does not reflect the surplus-funded portion but the baseline 
allocation only, hence the overspending. 

Personnel 
The underspending of 4% is attributed to the high turnover and the lengthy period in the finalisation of appointment of 
personnel. Although most of the funded vacant posts were filled by the end of the financial year, some were still at various 
stages of the recruitment process at the end of the reporting period. 

Administrative Expenses 
The bulk of the underspending within administrative expenses is on property payments and leases. The budget for these 
accounts is based on planned acquisitions for the financial year. The underspending is caused by delays in the acquisition of 
office accommodation; this in turn impacts directly on the expenditure for related and other property expenses such as security, 
cleaning and municipal services which are dependent on the number of offices including planned acquisitions. 
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